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We have audited the annexed balance sheet of Trust Investment Bank Limited (“the Company”) as at 30 June 2008 
and the related profit and loss account, cash flow statement and statement of changes in equity together with the 
notes forming part thereof, for the year then ended and we state that we have obtained all the information and 
explanations which, to the best of our knowledge and belief, were necessary for the purposes of our audit.

It is the responsibility of the Company’s management to establish and maintain a system of internal control, and 
prepare and present the above said statements in conformity with the approved accounting standards and the 
requirements of the Companies Ordinance, 1984. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these statements 
based on our audit.

We conducted our audit in accordance with the auditing standards as applicable in Pakistan. These standards require 
that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the above said statements are free 
of any material misstatement. An audit includes examining, on a test basis, evidence supporting the amounts and 
disclosures in the above said statements. An audit also includes assessing the accounting policies and significant 
estimates made by management, as well as, evaluating the overall presentation of the above said statements. We 
believe that our audit provides a reasonable basis for our opinion and, after due verification, we report that:

a)	 in our opinion, proper books of account have been kept by the Company as required by the Companies 
Ordinance, 1984;

b)	 in our opinion:

	 i)	 the balance sheet and profit and loss account together with the notes thereon have been drawn up in 
conformity with the Companies Ordinance, 1984, and are in agreement with the books of account and 
are further in accordance with accounting policies consistently applied;

	 ii)	 the expenditure incurred during the year was for the purpose of the Company’s business; and

	 iii)	 the business conducted, investments made and the expenditure incurred during the year were in 
accordance with the objects of the Company;

c)	 in our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the balance 
sheet, profit and loss account, cash flow statement and statement of changes in equity together with the 
notes forming part thereof conform with approved accounting standards as applicable in Pakistan, and, give 
the information required by the Companies Ordinance, 1984, in the manner so required and respectively give 
a true and fair view of the state of the Company’s affairs as at 30 June 2008 and of the profit, its cash flows 
and changes in equity for the year then ended; and

d)	 in our opinion Zakat deductible at source under the Zakat and Ushr Ordinance, 1980 (XVIII of 1980), was 
deducted by the Company and deposited in the Central Zakat Fund established under section 7 of that 
Ordinance.

Lahore: September 27, 2008	 KPMG Taseer Hadi & Co.
	 Chartered Accountants

AUDITORS’ REPORT TO THE MEMBERS



34

		  2008	 2007
	 Note	 Rupees	 Rupees
Non - current assets			 
Fixed assets			 
	 Property and equipment	 4 	  124,078,819 	  108,061,123 
	 Intangible asset	 4 	  33,204,684 	  30,955,585 
			    157,283,503 	  139,016,708 
			 
	 Net investment in lease finance	 5 	  3,420,843,454 	  3,017,606,748 
	 Long term finances	 7 	  563,347,630 	  42,912,864 
	 Long term investments	 8 	  279,992,000 	  527,614 
	 Long term deposits 		   4,159,629 	  3,965,828 
	 Long term advances	 9 	  97,379,318 	  38,025,000 
	 Deferred tax asset		   55,366,202 	  - 
			    4,421,088,232 	  3,103,038,054 
			    4,578,371,735 	  3,242,054,762 
Current assets			 
	 Current maturities of non - current assets	 10 	  1,210,646,914 	  972,804,725 
	 Short term finances	 11 	  384,634,120 	  39,190,979 
	 Short term placements 	 12 	  500,425,308 	  633,577,736 
	 Short term investments 	 13 	  569,891,145 	  770,405,616 
	 Taxation - net		   33,097,670 	  27,529,228 
	 Markup accrued	 14 	  37,070,524 	  17,544,269 
	 Advances, prepayments and other receivables	 15 	  681,939,159 	  539,624,140 
	 Cash and bank balances	 16 	  93,288,773 	  200,947,091 
			    3,510,993,613 	  3,201,623,784 
			    8,089,365,348 	  6,443,678,546 
	 Equity and liabilities			 
	     Share capital	 17 	  585,528,729 	  468,422,983 
	     Reserves	 18 	  510,079,888 	  547,640,945 
			    1,095,608,617 	  1,016,063,928 
(Deficit)/Surplus on revaluation of investments	 19 	  (120,299,798)	  6,594,532 
Suplus on revaluation of assets-net	 6 	  7,243,576 	  - 
			    982,552,395 	  1,022,658,460 
Non - current liabilities			 
	 Term finance certificates	 20 	  145,632,592 	  291,899,573 
	 Long term certificates of investment	 21 	  100,753,970 	  1,132,432,940 
	 Long term borrowings	 22 	  601,481,188 	  249,973,660 
	 Long term deposits	 23 	  1,026,219,481 	  933,431,375 
	 Pre- IPO subscription of Term Finance Certificates	 24 	  449,910,000 	  - 
	 Deferred tax liability		   - 	  25,036,526 
	 Staff service costs	 25 	  6,592,003 	  4,019,593 
			    2,330,589,234 	  2,636,793,667 
Current liabilities			 
	 Current maturities of long term liabilities	 26 	  1,648,256,153 	  794,041,048 
	 Short term certificates of investment	 27 	  1,042,181,991 	  331,874,225 
	 Short term borrowings	 28 	  1,911,402,172 	  1,373,653,324 
	 Markup accrued	 29 	  93,231,841 	  54,181,534 
	 Trade and other payables	 30 	  81,151,562 	  230,476,288 
		  	  4,776,223,719 	  2,784,226,419 
			    7,106,812,953 	  5,421,020,086 
Contingencies and commitments	 31 		
			    8,089,365,348 	  6,443,678,546 
			 
The annexed notes 1 to 47 form an integral part of these financial statements.			 

balance sheet 
As at 30 June 2008

chief executive 	director
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		  2008	 2007
	 Note	 Rupees	 Rupees
Revenue			 
			 
Income from lease operations	 32 	  485,896,175 	  355,345,037 
Income from investments	 33 	  273,909,750 	  324,956,798 
Income from term finances	 34 	  44,110,976 	  8,978,427 
Income from brokerage		   54,295,141 	  28,183,755 
Other income	 35 	  90,838,641 	  14,938,618
 
		   949,050,683 	  732,402,635 
Expenditure			 
			 
Finance cost	 36 	  538,472,941 	  428,761,623 
Administrative and operating  expenses	 37 	  193,656,016 	  165,414,703 
Depreciation and amortization	 4.1 	  17,769,658 	  12,340,222 
Other charges	 38 	  1,030,487 	  25,545
 
	  	  750,929,102 	  606,542,093 

Operating profit before provisions and taxation 		   198,121,581 	  125,860,542 
			 
Provision for potential lease losses	 5.3 & 15.3	  (40,125,830)	  (50,087,348)
Provision for (diminution) / appreciation in 			 
   the value of investments	 8.2.1	  (527,614)	 463,976 
Impairment on available for sale investments 		   (16,622,059)	  - 
(Deficit) / surplus on revaluation of held 			 
   for trading investments		  (74,721,716)	 39,310,382
 
		   (131,997,220)	  (10,312,990)

Profit before taxation 		   66,124,361 	  115,547,552 
			 
Provision for taxation 	 39 	  83,658,581 	  (12,500,000)
			 
Profit after taxation 		   149,782,942 	  103,047,552 
			 
Earnings per share - basic	 40 	  2.56 	  1.76
 
			 
The annexed notes 1 to 47 form an integral part of these financial statements.			 

profit and loss account
for the year ended 30 June 2008

chief executive 	director
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cash flow statement
for the year ended 30 June 2008

		  2008	 2007
	 	 Rupees	 Rupees
Cash flows from operating activities				  
	 Profit before taxation		   66,124,361 	  115,547,552 
	 Adjustments for non cash items:			 
	   Depreciation		   17,769,658 	  12,340,222 
	   Amortization of transaction costs of term finance certificates 		  3,733,019 	  3,238,657 
	   Provision for staff service costs		   8,817,108 	  8,096,406 
	   Provision for doubtful receivables		   40,125,830 	  50,087,348 
	   Lease receivables written off		   1,020,487 	  23,877 
	   Finance cost		   538,472,941 	  428,761,623 
	   Loss on sale of property and equipment		   - 	  1,668 
	   Profit on sale of property and equipment		   (22,448,499)	  (199,163)
	   Dimunition/(Surplus)   on revaluation of held for trading investments 	  74,721,716 	  (39,310,382)
	   Impairment on available for sale investments 		   16,622,059 	  - 
	   Provision for / (appreciation) in the value of investments		   527,614 	  (463,976)
	   Gain on sale of available for sale investments 		   (9,472,666)	  (3,685,066)

			    669,889,268 	  458,891,214 

Operating profit before working capital changes		   736,013,629 	  574,438,766 
Changes in operating assets and liabilities				  
	 (Increase) / decrease in:			 
	 Long term and short term investments 		  (279,992,000)	  (288,223,569)
	 Short term placements		  133,152,428 	  423,191,978 
	 Markup accrued 		  (19,526,255)	  (2,392,262)
	 Advances, prepayments and other receivables		  (209,464,875)	  (63,804,604)
	 Long term and short term finances		   (392,443,141)	  (26,911,475)
	 Net investment in lease finance		   (668,633,512)	  (100,142,206)
	 Purchase of investments available for sale		  (608,541,510)	  (96,178,288)
	 Certificates of investment		  573,542,054 	  734,128,425 
	 Long term deposits		   184,979,398 	  82,211,944
 
			    (1,286,927,413)	  661,879,943 
	 Increase in trade and other payables 		  (149,324,726)	  154,023,020
 
			    (1,436,252,139)	  815,902,963 
				  
Cash (utilized) / generated in operations		   (700,238,510)	  1,390,341,729 
				  
	 Financial charges paid		  (499,422,634)	  (432,172,544)
	 Taxes paid		   (5,568,442)	  (5,160,005)
	 Staff service costs paid		  (6,244,698)	  (9,657,276)

			    (511,235,774)	  (446,989,825)

Net cash used in / generated operating activities		   (1,211,474,284)	  943,351,904 
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chief executive 	director

		  2008	 2007
	 Note	 Rupees	 Rupees
				  
Cash flows from investing activities				  
	 Purchase of property and equipment 		   (51,316,084)	  (76,547,811)
	 Purchase of Intangible assets		   (2,510,550)	  (950,650)
	 Long term advances		  (59,354,318)	  (38,025,000)
	 Long term deposits		  (193,801)	  (1,303,300)
	 Sale proceeds of investments		  597,099,434 	  25,685,066 
	 Sale proceeds of fixed assets		   50,763,300 	  1,683,000 
				  
Net cash generated / used in investing activities		   534,487,982 	  (89,458,695)
				  
Cash flows from financing activities				  
	 Long and short term borrowings		  358,903,083 	  (573,933,823)
	 Issue of term finance certificates		   450,000,000 	  - 
	 Redemption of term finance certificates		  (290,375,000)	  (212,500,000)
	 Dividends paid		  (70,263,447)	  (60,013,158)
				  
Net cash generated / used in from financing activities		   448,264,636 	  (846,446,981)
				  
Net  increase in cash and cash equivalents		   (228,721,666)	  7,446,228 
Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the year		   (10,206,233)	  (17,652,461)

Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year	 43	  (238,927,899)	  (10,206,233)

				  
The annexed notes 1 to 47 form an integral part of these financial statements.
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Notes to the Financial Statements
for the year ended 30 June 2008

1	 The Company’s operations and registered office 		
			 
	 Trust Investment Bank Limited (“the Company”) was incorporated in 1992 as a public limited Company 

under the Companies Ordinance, 1984 and is listed on Lahore, Karachi and Islamabad Stock Exchanges. 
The registered office of  the Company is situated at 23-D/1-A, Gulberg III, Lahore. The Company is mainly 
engaged in the business of investment finance services and leasing. It is classified as a Non-Banking Finance 
Company (NBFC) and is regulated by the Securities and Exchange Commission of Pakistan (SECP). The 
Company is a member of Lahore Stock Exchange (Guarantee) Limited. 

		
	 Pakistan Credit Rating Agency Limited has maintained the long term credit rating of the Company at “A+”( 

A plus), while short term credit rating has also been maintained at “A 1( A one ) with stable out look. Rating 
of term finance certificate I ,II, and III has been maintained at “AA -”(double A minus) of TFC I and TFC II ( 
both tranches) and “AA” (double AA ) of TFC III.		

			 
2	 Statement of compliance and significant estimates		
			 
	 2.1	 Statement of compliance		
			 
		  These accounts have been prepared in accordance with the approved International Financial 

Reporting Standards (IFRS) issued by the International Accounting Standards Committee (IASC) 
and interpretations issued by the Standards Interpretations Committee of the IASC, as applicable 
in Pakistan and the requirements of the Companies Ordinance, 1984 , the Non-Banking Finance 
Companies and Notified entities Regulations 2007, the Prudential Regulations for NBFCs, along with 
the requirements of the Securities and Exchange Commission of Pakistan (SECP). Wherever, the 
requirements of the Companies Ordinance, 1984, the rules, the regulations or the directives issued 
by the SECP differ with the requirements of these IAS, the requirements of the Ordinance, the rules, 
the regulations or the requirements of the said directives take precedence.	

			 
		  The SECP has deferred the applicability of International Accounting Standard (IAS) 39, ‘Financial 

Instruments: Recognition and Measurement’ and International Accounting Standard (IAS) 40, 
‘Investment Property’ through Circular No. 19 dated 13 August 2003 to Non-Banking Finance 
Companies (NBFCs) providing investment finance services, discounting services and housing 
finance services. Accordingly, the requirements of these standards have not been considered in the 
preparation of these financial statements.	

			 
		  Standards, Interpretations and amendments to published approved accounting standards	
			 
		  The following amendments to existing standards have been published that are applicable to the 

Company’s financial statements covering annual periods, beginning on or after the following dates:	
			 
		  Amendments to published standards effective in current year	
			 
		  Amendments to IAS 1 ‘Presentation of Financial Statements’ - Capital disclosure is mandatory for 

the Company’s accounting period beginning on 01 July 2007. Its adoption by the Company only 
impacts the format and extent of disclosures presented in the financial statements.	
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		  Amendments and Interpretations to publish standards applicable to the Company not yet 
effective	

			 
		  The following amendments and interpretations to existing standards have been published and are 

mandatory for the Company’s accounting periods beginning on or after their respective effective 
dates:	

			 
		  - 	 Certain amendments to IAS 23 ‘Borrowing Costs’ have been published that are applicable to the 

Company’s financial statements covering annual periods, beginning on or after 01 July 2009. 
Adoption of these amendments would require the Company to capitalize the borrowing costs 
directly attributable to the acquisition, construction of production of a qualifying asset (one that 
takes substantial period of time to get ready for use or sale) as part of the cost of that asset. The 
option of immediately expensing these borrowing costs will be removed. Its adoption will not 
have any impact on the Company’s financial statements.	

			 
		  - 	 IFRS 14, ‘IAS 19 - The limit on a defined benefit asset, minimum funding requirements and their 

interaction; is effective from 01 July 2008. IFRIC 14  provides guidance on assessing the limit 
in IAS 19 on the amount of the surplus that can be recognized as an asset. It also explains how 
the pension asset or liability may be affected by a statutory or contractual minimum funding 
requirement. The Company will apply IFRIC 14 from 01 July 2008, but it is not expected to have 
any significant impact on the Company’s financial statements.	

			 
			   Standards and interpretations to existing standards that are not applicable to the Company 

and not yet effective	
			 
			   Standards or interpretation		  Effective date (accounting periods
					     beginning on or after)
			 
			   IFRS 2 - Share based payment		  01 July 2009
			   IFRS 7 - Financial Instruments Disclosure		  01 July 2008
			   IFRS 8 - Operating Segments		  01 July 2009
			   IFRIC 12 - Service concession arrangements		  01 July 2009
			   IFRIC 13 - Customer loyalty programmes		  01 July 2009
			   IFRIC 15 - Accounting for agreements for the 
			   construction of real estate		  01 July 2009
			   IFRIC 16 - Hedge of net investment in a foreign operation	 01 July 2009
			 
			   In addition to the above, a new standard ‘IFRS 4 - Insurance Contracts’ has been issued by 

the International Accounting Standards Board but has not yet been adopted by the Institute of 
Chartered Accountants of Pakistan (ICAP) or notified by the SECP and, hence, presently do not 
form part of the local financial reporting framework.

	
	 2.2       Significant estimates		
			 
		  The preparation of financial statements in conformity with approved accounting standards requires 

management to make judgments, estimates and assumptions that effect the application of policies 
and reported amounts of assets and liabilities, income and expenses. The estimates and associated 
assumptions and judgments are based on historical experience and various other factors that are 
believed to be reasonable under the circumstances, the result of which form the basis of making 
the judgments about carrying values of assets and liabilities that are not readily apparent from other 
sources. Actual results may differ from these estimates.	
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		  The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis. Revision to accounting 
estimates are recognized in the period in which the estimate is revised if the revision effects only 
that period, or in the period of revision and future periods if the revision affects both current and 
future periods. The areas where various assumptions and estimates are significant to Company’s 
financial statements or where judgments were exercised in  application of accounting policies are 
as follows:	

			 
	 -	 Useful life of depreciable assets
			 
	 -	 Taxation
		
	 -	 Impairment
			 
	 -	 Provisions and contingencies	
			 
3	 Summary of significant accounting policies 		
			 
	 3.1	 Accounting convention	
			 
		  These financial statements have been prepared under the historical cost convention, except for 

revaluation of certain financial instrument at fair value and recognition of certain employee retirement 
benefits payable at present value.	

			 
	 3.2	 Taxation	
			 
		  Current	
			 
		  The charge for current taxation is based on taxable income at current rate of taxation of the Income 

Tax Ordinance, 2001 after taking into account applicable tax credits and rebates, if any.	
			 
		  Deferred	
			 
		  Deferred tax is recognized using the balance sheet liability method on all temporary differences 

between the amounts attributed to assets and liabilities for financial reporting purposes and amounts 
used for taxation purposes. 

	
		  Deferred tax liabilities are generally recognized for all taxable temporary differences. Deferred tax 

asset is recognized to the extent that it is probable that future taxable profits will be available against 
which deductible difference, unused tax losses and tax credits can be utilized. Deferred tax assets 
are reduced to the extent that it is no longer probable that the related tax benefit will be realized. 
Deferred tax is calculated at the rates that are expected to apply to the period when differences 
reverse based on tax rates that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the balance sheet 
date.	

			 
		  Deferred tax is charged or credited to income statement, except in case of items credited or charged 

to equity, in which case it is included in equity.	
			 
	 3.3	 Property and equipment	
			 
		  These are stated at historical cost less accumulated depreciation and impairment losses.	
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		  Depreciation is calculated using the diminishing balance method, except vehicles for which straight 
line method is used, at the rates specified in the fixed assets schedule, which are considered 
appropriate to write off the cost of the assets over their estimated useful lives.	

			 
		  Depreciation is charged from the month when assets are available for use upto the month in which 

the assets are disposed off.	
			 
		  Normal repairs and maintenance are charged to revenue as and when incurred. Renewals and 

replacements are capitalized when it is probable that respective future economic benefits will flow 
to the Company and the cost of the items can be reliably measured, and assets so replaced, if any, 
are retired.	

			 
		  Gains and losses on disposal of property and equipment are recognized in the profit and loss account 

in the year of disposal.	
			 
		  Surplus on revaluation of operating fixed assets is credited to the “Surplus on revaluation Account” 

shown below equity. Revaluation is carried out with sufficient regularity to ensure that the carrying 
amount of assets does not differ materially from the fair value. To the extent of the incremental 
depreciation charged on the revalued assets, the related surplus on revaluation of operating fixed 
assets (net of deffered taxation) is transferred directly to the un-appropriated profit. 	

			 
	 3.4	 Intangible assets	
			 
		  This is stated at cost less accumulated amortization and impairment losses, if any. The carrying  

amounts are reviewed at each balance sheet date to assess whether these are recorded in excess 
of their recoverable amounts, and where carrying value is in excess of recoverable amount, these 
are written down to their estimated recoverable amount.	

			 
		  Expenditure incurred to acquire computer software are capitalised as intangible assets and stated 

at cost less accumulated amortistion and any identified impairment loss. Intangible assets are 
amortised using the straight- line method over a period of  10 years.	

			 
		  Full month amortisation  is charged from the year when assets are available for use and no 

amourtization will be charged in the month in which the assets are disposed .	
			 
	 3.5	F inancial instruments	
			 
		  Financial assets	
			 
		  Significant financial assets include short and long term finances, short and long term investments, 

short term placements, net investment in leases, advances and receivables, long term deposits and 
cash and bank balances. Finances and receivables from clients are stated at their nominal value as 
reduced by provision for doubtful finances and receivable, while other financial assets are stated at 
cost except for investments, which have been revalued as per accounting policies.	

			 
		  Financial liabilities	
			 
		  Financial liabilities are classified according to the substance of the contractual arrangements entered 

into. Significant financial liabilities include term finance certificates, short and long term borrowings, 
certificates of investment, deposits against lease arrangements, trade and other payables and 
dividends payable. Markup based financial liabilities are recorded at gross proceeds received. Other 
liabilities are stated at their nominal value.	
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		  Derivatives	
			 
		  Derivative instruments held by the Company comprise of future and forward contracts in the capital 

and money markets. These are stated at fair value at the balance sheet date. The fair value of the 
derivatives is equivalent to the unrealised gain or loss from marking the derivatives using prevailing 
market rates at the balance sheet date. The unrealised gains are included in other assets while 
unrealised losses are included in other liabilities in the balance sheet. The corresponding gains and 
losses are included in the profit and loss.	

			 
		  Recognition and derecognition	
			 
		  All the financial assets and financial liabilities are recognized at the time when the Company becomes 

a party to the contractual provisions of the instruments. Financial assets are derecognized when 
the Company loses control of the contractual rights that comprise the financial assets. Financial 
liabilities are derecognized when these are extinguished i.e. when the obligation specified in the 
contract is discharged, cancelled or expired. Any gain or loss on derecognition of the financial assets 
and liabilities is taken to the income in the current period. 	

			 
		  The policies in respect of these financial instruments have been disclosed in the relevant policy 

notes.	
			 
		  Offsetting of financial assets and financial liabilities	
			 
		  A financial asset and a financial liability is offset and the net amount is reported in the balance sheet 

if the Company has legal enforceable right to set off the recognized amount and intends either to 
settle on a net basis or to realize the assets and settle the liability simultaneously. Corresponding 
income on assets and charge on liability are reported at net amount.	

			 
	 3.6	 Provisions	
			 
		  A provision is recognized when the Company has a present legal or constructive obligation as a result 

of past events and it is probable that an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits will be 
required to settle the obligation and a reliable estimate can be made of the amount of obligation. 	

			 
	 3.7	 Investments	
			 
		  The Company classifies its investments as held to maturity, available for sale, investments at fair 

value through profit and loss account and loans and receivables.
	
		  Initial measurement	
			 
		  All investments are initially recognized at cost being the fair value of the consideration given including 

acquisition cost.	
			 
		  Subsequent measurement	
			 
		  Simple investment 	
			 
		  Investment in subsidiary company is measured at cost as per the requirements of IAS-27 “Consolidated 

and Separate Financial Statements”. However, at subsequent reporting dates, the Company reviews 
the carrying amounts of the investments and its recoverability to determine whether there is an 
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indication that such investments have suffered an impairment loss. If any such indication exists the 
carrying amount of the investment is adjusted to the extent of impairment loss. Impairment losses 
are recognized as an expense.	

			 
		  Held to maturity	
			 
		  The investments with fixed maturity or determinable payments where management has both intent 

and ability to hold to maturity are classified as held to maturity. These are stated at amortized cost 
using the effective interest rate method less impairment, if any. The amortization for the period is 
charged to the profit and loss account.	

			 
		  Held for trading	
			 
		  These include investments which are acquired principally for the purpose of generating profit from 

short term fluctuations in price or dealer’s margins, are classified as investments at fair value through 
profit and loss account. These are stated at fair values with any resulting surplus/(deficit) recognized 
in profit and loss account.	

			 
		  Available-for-sale	
			 
		  Investments which can not be classified as loans and receivables, held to maturity investments or 

financial assets at fair value through profit and loss are classified as available for sale investments.	
		  Investments intended to be held for an unidentified period of time, which may be sold in response 

to need for liquidity or changes to interest rates, exchange rates or equity prices are classified as 
available for sale.	

			 
		  Available-for-sale investments are measured at subsequent reporting dates at fair value for those 

shares which have fair values. However all such shares for which fair value cannot be determined 
are valued at cost. Surplus/(deficit) on remeasurement is kept in a separate account and is shown in 
the balance sheet below the shareholders’ equity, until the security is disposed off or is determined 
to be impaired, at which time, the cumulative surplus/(deficit) is included in the profit and loss 
account.	

			 
	 3.8	 Trade and settlement date accounting	
			 
		  All “regular way” purchases and sales of listed shares are recognized on the trade date, i.e. the date 

that the Company commits to purchase/ sell the asset. Regular way purchase or sale of financial 
assets are those, the contract for which requires delivery of assets within the time frame  established 
generally by regulation or convention in the market place concerned.	

			 
	 3.9	 Securities under repurchase/reverse repurchase agreements	
			 
		  Transactions of repurchase/ reverse repurchase of investment securities are entered into at 

contracted rate for specified periods of time and are accounted for as follows.	
			 
		  Repurchase agreements	
			 
		  Investments sold with the simultaneous commitment to repurchase at a specified future date (Repo) 

continue to be recognized in the balance sheet and are measured in accordance with accounting 
policies for investments. The counterparty liability for amounts received under these agreements is 
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included in short term borrowing from banks/NBFC’s. The difference between sale and repurchase 
price is treated as markup on short term borrowing from banks/NBFC’s and accrued over the tenore 
of the repo agreement. 

	
		  Reverse Repurchase agreements	
			 
		  Investments purchased with a simultaneous commitment to resell at a specified future date (reverse 

repo) are not recognized in the balance sheet. Amounts paid under these agreements are recorded 
as ‘short term placements’. The difference between purchase and resale price is treated as return 
from funds placement with financial institutions or income from reverse repurchase transactions of 
listed shares, as the case may be, and accrued over the life of reverse repo agreement.  	

			 
	 3.10	 Term finances	
			 
		  Term finances originated by the Company are stated at cost less any amount written off and provision 

for doubtful finances, if any, in accordance with NBFCs prudential regulations.	
			 
	 3.11	 Net investment in lease finance	
			 
		  Lease where the Company transfers substantially all the risks and rewards incidental to ownership of 

the asset to the lessee are classified as finance leases. Net investment in lease finances is recognized 
at an amount equal to the aggregate of minimum lease payments including any guaranteed residual 
value and excluding unearned finance income, write-offs and provision for doubtful lease finances, if 
any.	

			 
	 3.12	 Repossessed assets	
			 
		  The Company repossesses leased assets in settlement of non-performing finances provided 

to customers. Gains or losses on disposal are taken to the income in the current period unless 
recoverable from / payable to the customer. Major losses on the disposal of repossessed leased 
assets are accounted for as receivable till the final settlement with lessee. Minor losses on the 
disposal of repossessed vehicles are charged to the income in the current period.

	
	 3.13	 Revenue recognition	
			 
		  Finance leases	
			 
		  The “financing method” is used for recognition of finance income on finance leases. Under this 

method, the unearned finance income i.e. the excess of aggregate lease rentals and the estimated 
residual value over the net investment is deferred and then amortized to income over the term of 
the lease on a systematic basis, so as to produce a constant rate of return on the Company’s net 
investment in the finance lease.	

			 
		  Term Finances	
			 
		  Mark-up on term finances is recognized on accrual basis expect on classified term finances.	
			 
		  Capital gains and losses on sale of investments	
			 
		  Capital gains or losses on the sale of investments are recognized in the period in which they arise.	
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		  Commission income	
			 
		  Brokerage commission and other advisory fees are recognized when such services are provided.	
			 
		  Processing fee, front end fee, penal charges and commission income	
			 
		  These are recognized as income when services are provided.	
			 
		  Return on finances , placements and term finances	
			 
		  Return on finances provided, placements and term finances are recognized on time proportion 

basis.	
			 
		  Morabaha income	
			 
		  Mark-up/profit earned on finance under morabaha agreement and finance under buy-back agreement 

is recognized on a time proportion basis taking account of, where applicable, the relevant buy-back 
dates and prices, or where a specific schedule of recoveries is prescribed in the agreement, the 
respective dates when mark-up is required to be paid to the Company.	

			 
		  Income on bank deposits and reverse repo transactions	
			 
		  Income from bank deposits, investments, loans and advances is recognized on time proportion 

basis.	
			 
		  Guarantee commission	
			 
		  Commission income from guarantee is recognized on time proportion basis. 	
			 
		  Dividend Income	
			 
		  Dividend income is recognized when right to receive dividend is established.	
			 
	 3.14	 Return on certificates of investment and borrowings	
			 
		  Return on certificates of investment and borrowings is recognized on a time proportionate basis 

taking into account the relevant issue date and final maturity date.	
			 
	 3.15	 Staff retirement benefits	
			 
		  Defined benefit plan	
			 
		  Gratuity fund	
			 
		  The Company operates an approved funded gratuity scheme for all of its permanent employees 

subject to a minimum qualifying period of six months of service. Provisions are made in accordance 
with the actuarial valuation using ‘Projected Unit Credit method’. 	
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		  Actuarial gains and losses arising as a result of actuarial valuation are recognized as income or 
expense to the extent that the net cumulative unrecognized actuarial gains or losses at the end of the 
previous reporting period exceeded 10% of the higher of present value of defined benefit obligation 
and the fair value of the plan assets as at that date. These gains or losses are recognized over the 
expected average remaining working lives of the employees participating in the plan.	

			 
		  Gratuity is payable to employees on the completion of prescribed qualifying period of service under 

the scheme.	
			 
		  Leave encashment	
			 
		  The Company operates an unfunded leave encashment scheme for all of its permanent employees. 

Provisions are made in accordance with the actuarial valuation using ‘Projected Unit Credit method’. 
Provision for the year is charged to the profit and loss account.The amount recognized inthe balance 
sheet represents the present value of defined benefit obligations.	

			 
	 3.16	 Provision for potential lease losses and loans	
			 
		  The provision for potential lease losses and installment loan losses is maintained at a level which is 

adequate to provide for potential losses on lease and installment loan portfolio in accordance with 
Prudential Regulations for NBFCs. Specific provision for potential lease and installment loan losses 
is maintained at a level which, in the judgment of the management, is adequate to provide potential 
losses on lease and installment loan portfolio that can be reasonably anticipated. The provision is 
increased by charge to income and is decreased by charge offs, net of recoveries.	

			 
		  The leases, loans and advances are written off when there are no realistic prospects of recovery.	
			 
	 3.17	 Cash and cash equivalents	
			 
		  For the purpose of cash flow statement, cash and cash equivalents comprise of cash in hand, balance 

with banks on current and deposit accounts and short term running finance account.	
			 
		  The borrowing cost incurred on debts of the Company is charged to income.	
			 
	 3.18	 Borrowing Costs	
			 
		  The borowing cost incurred on debts of the company is charged to income	
			 
	 3.19	 Transactions with related parties and transfer pricing	
			 
		  The Company enters into transactions with related parties on arms length basis. Prices for 

transactions with related parties are determined using admissible valuation methods, except for the 
assets sold to employees at written down value as approved by the board of directors. 	

			 
		  Parties are said to be related, if they are able to influence the operating and financial decisions of the 

Company and vice versa.	
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	 3.20	F oreign currency translation 	
			 
		  Transactions denominated in foreign currencies are translated to Pak Rupee at the foreign exchange 

rate ruling at the date of transaction. Assets and liabilities in foreign currency are translated at the 
rates of exchange prevailing on the balance sheet date. All exchange gains/losses are taken to profit 
and loss account. 	

			 
	 3.21	 Impairment	
			 
		  The carrying amounts of the assets are reviewed at each balance sheet date to identify the 

circumstances indicating the occurrence of impairment loss or reversal of previous impairment 
losses. If any such indication exists, the recoverable amount i.e. greater of net selling price and 
value in use, of such asset is estimated and impairment loss is recognized in the profit and loss 
account. Where an impairment loss subsequently reverses, the carrying amount of such asset is 
increased to the revised estimate of its recoverable amount,so that the increased carrying amount 
does not exceed the carrying amount that would have been determined had no impairment loss been 
recognized for the asset in prior years. A reversal of the impairment loss is recognized in income.

	
	 3.22	 Dividends	
			 
		  Dividend is recognized as a liability in the period in which it is declared.	
			 
	 3.23	 Bonus shares	
			 
		  Bonus shares are recognized as an appropriation from profit in the period in which it is declared.

	 3.24	 Subsequent event

		  The board of directors have proposed a final cash dividend Nil (2007: 15%, Rs. 1.5 per share) and 
bonus shares Nil shares per 10 shares held (2007: 25%, 2.5 shares per 10 shares held).

		
		  2008	 2007
	 Note	 Rupees	 Rupees

4	  Fixed assets 				  
					   
	  Property and equipment 	 4.1	  124,078,819 	  108,061,123 
	  Intangible  	 4.1	  33,204,684 	  30,955,585 

			    157,283,503 	  139,016,708 



49

4.1	 Property and equipment 	

	 		  C  O  S  T					    D E P R E C I A T I O N					   

	 As at 	 Additions	 Revalu-	 Deletions	 As at	 As at	F or	 Incremen-		  As at	 Book value	 Depre-
	 1 July	 during the	 ation	 during the	 30 June	 1 July	 the	 tal deprici-	 On	 30 June	 as at 30	 ciation
	 2007	 year	 Surplus	 year	 2008	 2007	 year	 ation	 deletions	 2008	 June 2008	 rate
												          
	 Rupees	 Rupees	 Rupees	 Rupees	 Rupees	 Rupees	 Rupees		  Rupees	 Rupees	 Rupees	 %
PARTICULARS
												          
Owned
												          

Land	  - 	  20,777,813 	  1,222,187 	  - 	  22,000,000 	  - 	  - 	  - 	  - 	  - 	  22,000,000 	

Building on freehold land	  44,941,014 	  271,493 	  9,302,436 	 (27,724,493)	  26,790,450 	  3,376,198 	  1,048,284 	  25,194 	  (2,586,458)	  1,838,024 	  24,952,426 	 5

Leasehold improvements	  15,974,809 	  6,730,069 	  - 	  - 	  22,704,878 	  2,888,518 	  3,383,119 	  - 	  - 	  6,271,637 	  16,433,241 	 20

Office equipment and 
   machines	  17,963,161 	  4,799,694 	  - 	  (179,900)	  22,582,955 	  5,774,692 	  2,985,860 	  - 	  (45,601)	  8,714,951 	  13,868,004 	 20

Furniture and fixtures	  16,097,327 	  1,773,791 	  - 	  (143,644)	  17,727,474 	  3,740,945 	  1,334,675 	  - 	  (60,994)	  5,014,626 	  12,712,848 	 10

Air-conditioning equipment	  4,577,164 	  2,425,768 	  - 	  (71,700)	  6,931,232 	  1,163,373 	  405,623 	  - 	  (28,765)	  1,540,231 	  5,391,001 	 10

Vehicles	  35,513,840 	  14,537,456 	  - 	  (7,475,024)	  42,576,272 	  10,062,467 	  8,350,646 	  - 	  (4,558,140)	  13,854,973 	  28,721,299 	 20

            2008	  135,067,315 	  51,316,084 	 10,524,623 	 (35,594,761)	  161,313,261 	  27,006,193 	 17,508,207 	  25,194 	  (7,279,958)	  37,234,442 	  124,078,819 
	
 												          

	Had there been no revaluation, the net book value of specific classes of operating assets would have amounted to:

		  2008	 2007
	 	 Rupees	 Rupees

	 Land		  20,777,813 	  -   
	 Building on freeehold land		   17,488,014 	  13,086,291

	 		  C  O  S  T					    D E P R E C I A T I O N					   

	 As at 	 Additions	 Revalu-	 Deletions	 As at	 As at	F or	 Incremen-		  As at	 Book value	 Depre-
	 1 July	 during the	 ation	 during the	 30 June	 1 July	 the	 tal deprici-	 On	 30 June	 as at 30	 ciation
	 2006	 year	 Surplus	 year	 2007	 2006	 year	 ation	 deletions	 2007	 June 2007	 rate
												          
	 Rupees	 Rupees	 Rupees	 Rupees	 Rupees	 Rupees	 Rupees		  Rupees	 Rupees	 Rupees	 %
PARTICULARS
												          
Owned
												          

Building on freehold land	  17,217,938 	  27,723,076 	  - 	  - 	  44,941,014 	  2,092,686 	  1,283,511 	  - 	  - 	  3,376,197 	  41,564,817 	 5

Leasehold improvements	  5,154,028 	  10,820,781 	  - 	  - 	  15,974,809 	  1,179,714 	  1,708,804 	  - 	  - 	  2,888,518 	  13,086,291 	 20

Office equipment and 
   machines	  9,513,223 	  8,449,938 	  - 	  - 	  17,963,161 	  3,829,877 	  1,944,815 	  - 	  - 	  5,774,692 	  12,188,469 	 20

Furniture and fixtures	  9,966,879 	  6,130,448 	  - 	  - 	  16,097,327 	  2,663,776 	  1,077,169 	  - 	  - 	  3,740,945 	  12,356,382 	 10

Air-conditioning equipment	  3,710,801 	  866,363 	  - 	  - 	  4,577,164 	  803,480 	  359,893 	  - 	  - 	  1,163,373 	  3,413,791 	 10

Vehicles	  15,133,190 	  22,557,205 	  - 	  (2,176,555)	  35,513,840 	  4,882,552 	  5,870,965 	  - 	  (691,050)	  10,062,467 	  25,451,373 	 20

2007	  60,696,059 	  76,547,811 	  - 	  (2,176,555)	  135,067,315 	  15,452,085 	 12,245,157 	  - 	  (691,050)	  27,006,192 	  108,061,123 

Intangible
	 	                   C  O  S  T					     A M O R T I Z A T I O N 			 
	 As at 	 Additions	 Deletions	 As at	 As at	F or		  As at	 Book value
	 1 July	 during the	 during the	 30 June	 1 July	 the	 On	 30 June	 as at 30
	 2007	 year	 year	 2008	 2007	 year	 deletions	 2008	 June 2008
											         
PARTICULARS	 Rupees	 Rupees	 Rupees	 Rupees	 Rupees	 Rupees	 Rupees	 Rupees	 Rupees

Lahore Stock Exchange 									       
   Membership	  30,100,000 	  -   	  -   	  30,100,000 	  -   	  -   	 -	  -   	  30,100,000 
Software licences	  950,650 	  2,510,550 	  -   	  3,461,200 	  95,065 	  261,451 	 -	  356,516 	  3,104,684
 

2008	  31,050,650 	  2,510,550 	  -   	  33,561,200 	  95,065   	  261,451 	 -	  356,516 	  33,204,684
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	 	                   C  O  S  T					     A M O R T I Z A T I O N 			 
	 As at 	 Additions	 Deletions	 As at	 As at	F or		  As at	 Book value
	 1 July	 during the	 during the	 30 June	 1 July	 the	 On	 30 June	 as at 30
	 2006	 year	 year	 2007	 2006	 year	 deletions	 2007	 June 2007
											         
PARTICULARS	 Rupees	 Rupees	 Rupees	 Rupees	 Rupees	 Rupees	 Rupees	 Rupees	 Rupees

Lahore Stock Exchange 									       
   Membership	  30,100,000 	  -   	  -   	  30,100,000 	  -   	  -   		   -   	  30,100,000 
Software Licences	  -   	  950,650 	  -   	  950,650 	  -   	  95,065   		   95,065   	  855,585
 

2007	  30,100,000 	  950,650 	  -   	  31,050,650 	  -   	 95,065		  95,065   	  30,955,585

4.1.1	Gain on disposal of fixed assets
						    
		   Cost 	  Book 	  Sale  	  Gain /  	  Mode of 	  Purchaser 
			   value	 proceeds	 (loss)	 disposal
	 Description	  Rupees 	  Rupees 	  Rupees 	  Rupees 		
							     
	 Assets with book value 						    
	    below Rs. 50,000	  233,244 	  128,707 	  31,300 	  (97,407)	  Negotiation 	  Various 
							     
	 Buildings						    
	 Plot at Kot Shabudin	  15,165,000 	  14,977,790 	  22,725,000 	  7,747,210 	  Negotiation 	  Ch.Munawar Iqbal  
	 7-B/5 Aziz Avenue	  12,559,493 	  10,160,245 	  23,000,000 	  12,839,755 	  Negotiation 	  M/S Crescent Pwertec Limited 
	 Equipments						    
	 Telephone Exchange	  162,000 	  131,175 	  70,000 	  (61,175)	  Negotiation 	  Panasonic Media Solution 
	 Vehicles						    
	 Vehicle-LZA-9669	  790,500 	  250,325 	  560,000 	  309,675 	  Company Policy 	  Abdul Rauf Ghani 
	 Vehicle-LZC-3883	  790,500 	  250,325 	  560,000 	  309,675 	  Company Policy 	  Abdul Aziz Khan Niazi 
	 Vehicle-LWE-6740	  1,282,500 	  726,750 	  875,000 	  148,250 	  Company Policy 	  Rashid Ahmed 
	 Vehicle-LZZ-955	  830,500 	  415,250 	  580,000 	  164,750 	  Company Policy 	  Mudassir  kaiser Pal 
	 Vehicle-LEC-9157	  396,050 	  376,247 	  365,000 	  (11,247)	  Stolen 	  New Jubliee Insurance 
	 Vehicle-LWO-9825	  881,124 	  543,360 	  600,000 	  56,640 	  Negotiation 	  Mirza Talat Mehmood Baig 
	 Vehicle-LRK-701	  1,174,000 	  - 	  721,000 	  721,000 	  Negotiation 	  Sumaira Amjad 
	 Vehicle-LZN-6613	  1,329,850 	  354,627 	  676,000 	  321,373 	  Negotiation 	  Arshad Ali 
							     
	               2008	  35,594,761 	  28,314,801 	  50,763,300 	  22,448,499 

		   Cost 	  Book 	  Sale  	  Gain /  	  Mode of 	  Purchaser 
			   value	 proceeds	 (loss)	 disposal
	 Description	  Rupees 	  Rupees 	  Rupees 	  Rupees 		
							     
	 Assets with book value 						    
	    below Rs. 50,000	 7,000	 3,668	 2,000	 (1,668)	 Theft	 - 
							     
	 Vehicles						    
	 Vehicle  LZT-255	  830,500 	  539,825 	  646,000 	  106,175 	  Negotiation 	  Argosy Enterprises 
	 Vehicle LWE-4260	  1,192,500 	  894,375 	  945,000 	  50,625 	  Negotiation 	  Argosy Enterprises 
	 Motor Cycle LRG-8108	  75,555 	  5,037 	  30,000 	  24,963 	  Company policy 	  Ch. Abdul Rehman 
	 Motor Cycle Sialkot Branch	  71,000 	  42,600 	  60,000 	  17,400 	  Theft 	

	                2007	  2,169,555 	  1,481,837 	  1,681,000 	  199,163 		  		
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		  2008	 2007
	 Note	 Rupees	 Rupees
5	 Net investment in lease finance 				  
					   
	 Lease payments receivable	 5.1	  4,420,396,057 	  3,864,762,908 
	 Add:  Residual value		   1,223,377,097 	  1,054,280,794
 
	 Gross investment in leases		   5,643,773,154 	  4,919,043,702
 
	 Less: Unearned finance income		   767,135,109 	  687,719,451 
	 Income suspended 	 5.2	  138,212,086 	  161,531,804 
	 Provision for potential lease losses	 5.3	  113,042,667 	  80,900,962
 
			    1,018,389,862 	  930,152,217
 
	 Net investment in lease finance		   4,625,383,292 	  3,988,891,485 
 
	 Less: Current portion of net investment 			 
	 in lease finance	 10 	  1,204,539,838 	  971,284,737 
 
			    3,420,843,454 	  3,017,606,748

 
		   	                        3 0   J u n e   2 0 0 8 		
		  Not later 	L ater than one year	L ater	 Total
		  than one 	 and not later than	 than five
		  year	 five years	 years	
					   
		  Rupees	 Rupees	  Rupees 	 Rupees
					   
	 Gross investment	  1,604,856,731 	  4,038,916,423 	  - 	  5,643,773,154 
	 Less:  Unearned finance income	    400,316,893 	    366,818,216 	  - 	     767,135,109 
 
		   1,204,539,838 	  3,672,098,207 	  - 	  4,876,638,045

		   	                        3 0   J u n e   2 0 0 7		
		  Not later 	 Later than one year	 Later	 Total
		  than one 	 and not later than	 than five
		  year	 five years	 years	
					   
		  Rupees	 Rupees	  Rupees 	 Rupees 
		
	 Gross investment	  1,317,703,796 	  3,601,339,906 	  - 	  4,919,043,702 
	 Less:  Unearned finance income	     346,419,059 	     341,300,392 	  - 	      687,719,451
 
		      971,284,737 	  3,260,039,514 	  - 	  4,231,324,251

 
	 5.1	 The Company has entered into various lease agreements with implicit rate of return ranging from 

6.75% to 24% (2007:6.75% to 22%) per annum. Security deposit is obtained generally upto 10% to 
20% of the cost of leased assets at the time of disbursement. The Company requires the lessees to 
insure the leased assets in the favour of the Company and to maintain the financial ratios required 
by NBFC’s Prudential regulations. Additional lease rentals are charged on delayed payments.  			

		  All the leases are secured against demand promissory notes of the lessees and personal guarantees 
of the directors and in case of individual lessees two personal guarantees. Whereas, certain leases 
are additionally secured by mortgage of immovable property.			 
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		  2008	 2007
	 Note	 Rupees	 Rupees
	 5.2	 Income suspended			   
		  Balance at the beginning of the year		   161,531,804 	  57,897,652 
		  Charge for the year		   54,335,852 	  184,717,685 
		  Reversal of suspension		   (77,655,570)	  (81,083,533)
 
		  Balance at the end of the year		   138,212,086 	  161,531,804  
	 5.3	 Provision for potential lease losses			 
 
		  Balance at the beginning of the year		   80,900,962 	  70,752,922 
		  Current year potential lease loss provision		   43,046,419 	  17,204,894 
		  Provision reversed during the year		   (9,884,227)	  (7,056,854)
		  Provision written off during the year		   (1,020,487)	  -
 
		  Balance at the end of the year		   113,042,667 	  80,900,962 
6	 Surplus on revaluation of fixed assets				  
 
	 Land 		   1,222,187 	 -
	 Building on freehold land		   9,302,436 	 -
 
		  6.1	  10,524,623 	 -
	 Less:			 
	 Deffered tax liability recongnized during the year		   (3,255,853)	  - 
	 Transferred to un-appropriated profit in respect				  
	   of incremental depreciation charged during the year		   (25,194)	  -
 
			    (3,281,047)	  - 
 
			    7,243,576 	  - 
					   
	 6.1	 Building on freehold land and a land owned in Gujrat were revalued on 30 June 2008 by independent 

valuers, M/S Synergisers (Private) Limited and Imtech (Private) Limited.			 
		  2008	 2007
	 Note	 Rupees	 Rupees
7	Long  term finances				  
 
	 Employees - considered good	 7.1 	  24,223,751 	  9,632,852 
 
	 Others			 
	    Secured - considered good	 7.2 	  544,930,955 	  34,500,000 
	    Unsecured - considered good		   300,000 	  300,000
 
			    569,454,706 	 44,432,852
	 Less : current maturity	 10 	  6,107,076 	  1,519,988 
 
			    563,347,630 	 42,912,864
					   
	 7.1 	 These represent long term finances provided to employees against mortgage of property. These 

carry mark-up ranging from 4% to 14.72% (2007: 4% to 13 %) per annum. The maximum aggregate 
balance due at the end of any month during the year from the chief executive is Rs. 5.74 million 
(2007: 1.20 million) and  executives is Rs. 15.6 million (2007: 7.40 million ).			 

 
		  Loan to chief executive amounts to Rs. 5.74 million outstanding as on 30 June 2008 and carries 

mark-up at the rate of 4 % to 10% per annum.			 
 
	 7.2 	 These include long term finances provided to customers against mortgage of property. These carry 

mark-up rate ranging from 11.75% to 29% (2007 : 15% to 19%) per annum.	
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		  2008	 2007
	 Note	 Rupees	 Rupees
8 	Long  term investments				  
					   
	 Investment in Bonds and Term Finance Certificates	 8.1	  279,992,000 	  - 
	 Investment in shares- unquoted 	 8.2	  - 	  527,614 

			    279,992,000 	  527,614 
					   
	 8.1	 Investment in Bonds and Term Finance Certificates	                 			 
		
		  Sukuk Bonds and TFCs - Unlisted			 
		  Held to maturity			 
		  Sukuk Bonds - New Allied Electronic Industries			 
		     (Pvt) Limited	 8.1.1	  20,000,000 	  - 
		  Sukuk Bonds Amtex Limited	 8.1.2	  75,000,000 	  - 
		  Sukuk Bonds Eden Housing Limited	 8.1.3	  50,000,000 	  - 
		  TFC - Azgard Nine Limited	 8.1.4	  39,992,000 	  - 
		  TFC - Dewan Cement Limited	 8.1.5	  50,000,000 	  - 
		  TFC - Gharibwal Cement Limited	 8.1.6	  25,000,000 	  - 
		  TFC - Grays Leasing Limited (Pre-IPO)	 8.1.7	  20,000,000 	  - 
					   
				     279,992,000 	  - 
					   
	 8.1.1	 Represents Sukuk certificate issued by New Allied Electronic Industries ( Pvt) Limited for a period of 

five years at the rate of  3 month KIBOR + 2.60%. JCR-VIS Credit Rating Agency Limited assigned a 
rating of “A-” (single A minus).			 

					   
	 8.1.2	 Represents Sukuk certificates issued by Amtex Limited for a period of five years at the rate of 3 

month KIBOR + 200 bps. JCR-VIS Credit Rating Agency Limited assigned a rating of “A+” ( single 
A Plus).			 

					   
	 8.1.3	 Represents Sukuk certificates issued by Eden Housing Limited for a period of five years at the rate 

of 6 month KIBOR + 2.5% %. JCR- VIS Credit Rating Agency Limited assigned a rating “A” ( Single 
A).			 

					   
	 8.1.4	 Represents secured privately placed Term Finance Certificates issued by Azgard Nine Limited for a 

period of thirteen months tenor at the rate of 6 month KIBOR + 225 bps with no floor and cap.The 
Pakistan Credit Rating Agency Limited assigned a rating of “A1+” ( A one Plus)			

	 8.1.5	 Represents Term Finance Certificates issued by Dewan Cement Company for a tenure of 6 years 
inclusive of a grace period of 1.5 years at a rate of 6 month KIBOR + 200 bps. 			

	 8.1.6	 Represents Term Finance Certificates issued by Gharibwal Cement Limited for the period of 5 years 
at the rate of 6 month KIBOR + 300 bps. JCR- VIS Credit Rating Agency Limited assigned a rating 
“BBB” ( Tripple B).			 

					   
	 8.1.7	 Represents secured privately placed Term Finance Certificate issued by Grays Leasing Limited for a 

period of 5 years at the rate of 6 month KIBOR + 250 bps with a floor of Nil and cap of 19%. JCR- VIS 
Credit Rating Agency Limited assigned a rating “A-” ( Single A minus).			 
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		  2008	 2007
	 Note	 Rupees	 Rupees
					   
	 8.2	 Unquoted shares, at cost			 
					   
		  Trust Management Services (Pvt.) Ltd.		   2,250,000 	  2,250,000 
		  Less:  Provision for diminution in the 
		               value of investments			 
			   8.2.1	  2,250,000 	  1,722,386
 
				     - 	  527,614 
					   
		

	 8.2.1	 Provision for diminution in the value of investments			 
					   
		  Opening balance		   1,722,386 	  2,186,362 
		  Charged / (reversed) for the year		   527,614 	  (463,976)

		  Closing balance		   2,250,000 	 1,722,386
					   
9 	Long  term advances				  
					   
	 Long term advances represents Rs. 97.379 million (2007: Rs. 38.025 million) paid to Tricon Developers 

against purchase of office space at Tricon Corporate Center located at 73 - Gulberg II Jail road Lahore.

		  2008	 2007
	 Note	 Rupees	 Rupees
10 	 Current maturities of non-current assets				  
					   
	 Long term finances	 7 	  6,107,076 	  1,519,988 
	 Net investment in lease finance 	 5 	  1,204,539,838 	  971,284,737 

			    1,210,646,914 	  972,804,725 
					   
11 	 Short term finances 				  
					   
	 Employees - considered good	 11.1	  804,120 	  1,190,979 

	 Others				  
	 Secured - considered good	 11.2	  383,830,000 	  38,000,000
 
	 Secured - considered doubtful 		   650,000 	  650,000 
	 Less: Provision against doubtful finance 	 11.3	  650,000 	  650,000
 
			    - 	  - 

			    384,634,120 	  39,190,979 
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	 11.1	 These represents staff loans to employees against their retirement benefits. These carry mark-up 
ranging from 11.99% to 13.65% (2007 : 11.47% to 18%) per annum. 			 

					   
	 11.2	 These include short term finances provided to individuals against their certificates of investment and 

mortgage of property. These carry mark-up ranging from 12.53% to 20% (2007 : 15.% to 19%) per 
annum.			 

		  2008	 2007
	 Note	  Rupees 	 Rupees
					   
					   
	 11.3	 Provision against doubtful finances		   650,000 	  650,000 
					   
12 	 Short term placements - considered good				  
					   
	 Secured				  
					   
	 Continuous funding system (CFS)	 12.1	  139,437,308 	  357,563,636 
	 Securities purchased under reverse 			 
	     repurchase agreements	 12.2 	  360,988,000 	  276,014,100 

			    500,425,308 	  633,577,736 
					   
	 12.1	 These represent short term funds placed under continuous funding system and carry an effective 

yield ranging from 9.8% to 18.54 % (2007: 11% to 19.5%) on an average basis per annum.  			

					   
	 12.2 	 These represent short term funds placed under reverse repurchase agreements and carry an effective 

yield ranging from 9.2% to 18.88 % (2007: 13.8% to 25%) on an average basis per annum.  			

					   
		  Fair value of quoted securities are held as collateral against lending on continuous funding system 

and reverse repurchase agreements. 				  
					   
				    2008	 2007
			   Note	 Rupees	 Rupees	

Quoted Shares

		  These has been placed for a period upto one year. 		   559,282,482 	  706,548,416

13 	 Short term investments 

					     2008			   2007		
				    Held by	 Given as	 Total	 Held by	 Given as	 Total 
				    Company	 collateral		  Company	 collateral

			   Note 	 Rupees	 Rupees	 Rupees	 Rupees	 Rupees	 Rupees
								      
	 Held for trading	 13.1	  73,742,791 	   24,528,702 	    98,271,493 	  500,027,796 	  167,605,000 	   667,632,796 
								      
	 Available for sale investments	 13.2	  162,347,671 	  309,271,982 	  471,619,653 	  102,772,820 	  - 	  102,772,820
 

			    	 236,090,462 	  333,800,684 	  569,891,145 	  602,800,616 	  167,605,000 	  770,405,616
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13.1	 Held for trading

			   Shares/Units		  Cost		F  air value	
			   2008	 2007	 2008	 2007	 2008	 2007
			   Number	 Number	 Rupees	 Rupees	 Rupees	 Rupees
							     
	 Name of investee company						    
							     
	 Technology and communication						    
	     Callmate Tellips Telecom Limited	  - 	  400,000 	  - 	  20,718,995 	 - 	  19,800,000 
							     
	 Energy and power						    
	     Pakistan Petroleum Limited	  - 	  200,000 	 - 	  53,200,274 	 - 	  52,490,000 
	     Pakistan Oil fields Limited	  - 	  306,000 	 -	  107,460,471 	  -	  97,002,000 
	     Oil & Gas Development Company Limited	  - 	  425,000 	  - 	  52,508,240 	  - 	  50,915,000 
	     National Refinery Limited	  22,000 	  - 	  8,572,960 	  - 	  6,544,340 	  - 
							     
	 Commercial Banks						    
	     Askari Commercial Bank Limited	  - 	  150,000 	 - 	  15,359,513 	  - 	  15,885,000 
	     The Bank of Punjab	  - 	  450,000 	 -	  50,771,686 	 - 	  52,425,000 
	     National Bank of Pakistan Limited	  - 	  125,000 	  - 	  31,430,123 	  - 	  32,750,000 
	     Faysal Bank Limited	  - 	  - 	  - 	  - 	 - 	  - 
	     Crescent Commercial Bank Limited	  2,363,000 	  2,790,500 	  52,692,183 	  49,700,534 	  24,929,650 	  62,646,725 
	     My Bank Limited	  1,400,250 	  1,994,000 	  33,003,893 	  56,401,210 	  26,464,725 	  59,620,600 
	     United Bank Limited	  - 	  200,000 	 - 	  42,911,295 	 - 	  43,990,000 
	     PICIC Commercial Bank Limted	  - 	  881,500 	 -	  36,922,073 	  - 	  38,786,000 
	     Saudi Pak Commercial Bank Limited	  - 	  1,000,000 	  -	  23,136,907 	 - 	  25,150,000 
	     NIB Bank Limited	  136,620 	  - 	  - 	  - 	  1,553,369 	
							     
	 Investment Companies						    
	     Arif Habib Securities Limited	  85 	  512,685 	  14,338 	  39,363,593 	  13,728 	  59,779,071 
	     Pervez Ahmed Securities Limited	  98,793 	  - 	  - 	  - 	  4,897,169 	  - 
							     
	 Insurance						   
	    Adamjee Insurance Company Limited	  30,000 	  - 	  8,716,695 	  - 	  8,121,601 	  - 
							     
	 Cable and Electronics						    
	     Pak Electron Limited	  55,475 	  472,500 	  3,816,680 	  40,049,100 	  3,106,601 	  40,635,000 
							     
	 Automobiles						    
	     Pak Suzuki Motors Company Limited	  189,000 	  40,200 	  66,176,460 	  8,388,400 	  22,640,310 	  15,758,400 
							     
		   	 4,295,223 	  9,947,385 	  172,993,209 	  628,322,414 	  98,271,493 	  667,632,796 
							     

13.1.1	 All shares have a face value of Rs.10.						    
							     
13.1.2	 Include shares of Rs.24,528,702 (2007: Rs. 167,605,000) deposited with Bank Al-Habib Limited for overdraft facility.

13.1.3	 The fair values are determined with reference to quoted stock exchange prices as at 30 June 2008.



57

13.2	 Available for sale investments

			   Shares/Units		  Cost		F  air value	
			   2008	 2007	 2008	 2007	 2008	 2007
			   Number	 Number	 Rupees	 Rupees	 Rupees	 Rupees
							     
	 Name of investee company						    
							     
	 Fertilizer	 					   
	     Engro Chemical Pakistan Limited	  249,100 	  - 	  84,613,604 	  - 	  69,949,771 	  - 

	 Energy and power						    
	     Pakistan State Oil Limited	  82,000 	  - 	  42,087,397 	  - 	  34,213,680 	  - 
	     Attock Refinery Limited	  147,000 	  - 	  44,081,667 	  - 	  36,732,360 	  - 
	     Pakistan Refinery Limited	  45,000 	  - 	  6,812,100 	  - 	  6,812,100 	  - 
							     
	 Commercial Banks						    
	     MCB Bank Limited	  200,000 	  - 	  85,803,207 	  - 	  65,276,000 	  - 
	     Bank Islami Pakistan Limited	  998,000 	  - 	  19,094,198 	  - 	  14,780,380 	  - 
							     
	 Investment Companies						    
	     Arif Habib Securities Limited	  410,000 	  - 	  71,824,983 	  - 	  66,206,800 	  - 
	     Pervez Ahmed Securities Limited	  850,250 	  750,000 	  58,693,860 	  7,500,000 	  42,146,892 	  17,025,000 
	     Jahangir Siddiqui Company Limited	  110,000 	  - 	  81,825,798 	  - 	  58,316,500 	  - 
	     Arif Habib Limited	  88,000 	  - 	  26,666,912 	  - 	  21,735,120 	  - 
							     
	 Insurance						   
	     Adamjee Insurance Company Limited	  29,000 	  - 	  9,341,761 	  - 	  7,850,900 	  - 
							     
	 Cement	 					   
	     D G Khan Cement Limited	  280,000 	  - 	  18,799,200 	  - 	  18,799,200 	  - 
							     
	 Textile	 					   
	     Nishat Mills Limited	  335,000 	  - 	  42,274,764 	  - 	  28,799,950 	  - 
	     Hira Textile Mills Limited	  - 	  1,172,187 	  - 	  14,652,338 	  - 	  11,721,870 
							     
	 Commercial Papers						    
	     Dewan Farooque Motor Limited	  - 	  - 	  - 	  - 	  - 	  46,525,950 
	     Azgard -Nine Limited	  - 	  - 	  - 	  - 	  - 	  27,500,000 
							     
		   	 3,823,350 	  1,922,187 	  591,919,451 	  22,152,338 	  471,619,653 	  102,772,820 
							     
13.2.1	 All shares have a face value of Rs.10.						    
							     
13.2.2	 Include shares of Rs.309,271,982 (2007: Nil) deposited with Bank Al-Habib Limited and Habib Bank Limited for overdraft facility.			 

			 
13.2.3	 The fair values are determined with reference to quoted stock exchange prices as at 30 June 2008.					   

		  2008	 2007
		   Rupees 	 Rupees
14	 Markup accrued				  
					   
	 Markup accrued on Sukuk bonds and term finance certificates		   9,102,971 	  - 
	 Mark-up accured on short term and long term finances		  21,985,378	 13,874,492
	 Mark-up accured on advance against leases		  5,982,175	 3,669,777

			   37,070,524	 17,544,269
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		  2008	 2007
	 Note	 Rupees	 Rupees

15	 Advances, prepayments and other receivables 				  
					   
	 Advance to employees-considered good 	 15.1 	  16,167 	  - 
	 Advance against leases	 15.2 	  98,118,169 	  77,815,311 
	 Advance against purchase of fixed assets		   5,023,459 	  36,710,266 
	 Other advances  -  considered good		   381,801 	  2,773,194 
	 Initial transaction cost of term finance certificates		   5,549,389 	  1,203,542 
	 Receivable from brokerage customers		   410,780,744 	  113,052,333 
	 Receivable from NCCPL		   - 	  227,784,312 
	 Prepayments 		   9,843,933 	  6,729,665 
	 Miscellaneous receivables from lessees	 15.3 	  148,625,216 	  71,654,315 
	 Other receivables - considered good		   3,600,281 	  1,901,202
 
			    681,939,159 	  539,624,140 
					   
	 15.1 	 These represent advances to employees which are adjustable against salary.			
					   
	 15.2 	 These represent advances given to suppliers on behalf of lessees in respect of assets to be leased 

and are eventually transferred to net investment in lease finance when the assets are transferred 
to lessees. Lessees are being charged with mark-up at 14% to 20 % (2007: 12% to 19%) per annum 
against these advances.			 

					   
		  2008	 2007
	 Note	 Rupees	 Rupees
	 15.3 	 Miscellaneous receivables from lessees			 
					   
		  Considered good		   148,625,216 	  71,654,315 
					   
		  Considered doubtful			 
		  Miscellaneous receivables from lessees		   67,144,071 	  59,159,946 
		  Less:  Provision against doubtful receivables			 
			   15.3.1	  67,144,071 	  59,159,946
 
				     - 	  -
 
				     148,625,216 	  71,654,315 
					   
	 15.3.1	 Provision against doubtful receivables			 
					   
		  Opening balance		   59,159,946 	  19,220,638 
		  Add: Charge for the year		   14,768,275 	  43,296,486 

				     73,928,221 	  62,517,124 
		  Less: Reversed during the year		   (6,784,150)	  (3,357,178)

		  Closing balance		   67,144,071 	  59,159,946
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		  2008	 2007
	 Note	  Rupees 	 Rupees
16	 Cash and bank balances				  
					   
	 Cash in hand		   1,175,600 	  395,429 
	 With banks in:				  
	 Deposit accounts 	 16.1	  232,202 	  231,791 
	 Current accounts 		   91,880,971 	  200,319,871 

			    92,113,173 	  200,551,662 

			    93,288,773 	  200,947,091 
					   
	 16.1	 Deposit accounts carry markup rate ranging from 4% to 7% per annum.

			   2008	 2007	 2008	 2007

			   Note	 No. of shares	 No. of shares	 Rupees	 Rupees
17	 Share capital 					  

	 Authorized 					   
						    
	 Ordinary shares of Rs. 10 each 	    80,000,000 	  50,000,000 	     800,000,000 	  500,000,000 
	 Preference shares of Rs. 10 each 	     30,000,000 	  30,000,000 	     300,000,000 	  300,000,000
 
			    110,000,000 	  80,000,000 	   1,100,000,000 	  800,000,000 
						    
	 Issued, subscribed and paid up 					   
						    
	 Ordinary shares of Rs. 10 each 
	    fully paid-up in cash	   20,142,984 	  20,142,984 	    201,429,840 	  201,429,840 
	 Ordinary shares of Rs. 10 each 
	    issued as bonus shares	   38,409,889 	  26,699,314 	    384,098,889 	  266,993,143
 
			   17.1	   58,552,873 	  46,842,298 	   585,528,729 	  468,422,983		

	
					   
		  2008	 2007
		  No. of shares	 No. of shares
	 17.1	 Reconciliation of ordinary shares			 
					   
		  Opening balance of ordinary shares of Rs.10 each		   46,842,297 	  40,732,432 
					   
		  Bonus shares issued during the year amounting 
		     to Rs.117,105,746 (2007: Rs.61,098,650)		   11,710,576 	  6,109,865 
					   
		  Closing balance of ordinary shares of Rs.10 each		   58,552,873 	  46,842,297
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		  2008	 2007
	 Note	  Rupees 	 Rupees
18	 Reserves 				  
					   
	 Capital reserves				  
	     Share premium reserve 		   - 	  70,714,920 
	     Statutory reserve 	 18.1	  206,758,318 	  176,801,731
 
			    206,758,318 	  247,516,651 
	 Revenue reserves			 
	     General reserve		   61,000,000 	  61,000,000 
	     Unappropriated profit 		   242,321,570 	  239,124,294
 
			    303,321,570 	  300,124,294
 
			    510,079,888 	  547,640,945 
					   
	 18.1	 Statutory reserve			 
					   
 		  Opening balance		   176,801,731 	  156,192,221 
		  Transfer from profit and loss account		   29,956,588 	  20,609,510 

				     206,758,319 	  176,801,731 
					   
		  This represents special reserve created at the rate of 20% of profit for the year after taxation under 

rule 2 of part III of SECP’s NBFC’s Prudential Regulations.			 
					   
		  2008	 2007
	 Note	 Rupees	 Rupees
19	 (Deficit)/Surplus on revaluation of investments				  
					   
	 Opening balance		   6,594,532 	  4,318,268 
	 Gain on sale of investment transferred to profit 			 
	 and loss account		   (6,594,532)	  (4,318,268)
	 Net movement in the fair value during the year		   (120,299,798)	  6,594,532
 
	 Closing balance		   (120,299,798)	  6,594,532 
					   
20	 Term Finance Certificates (TFC) - secured 				  
					   
	 TFC I	 20.1	  - 	  140,375,000 
	 TFC II-1st tranche	 20.2	  112,500,000 	  187,500,000 
	 TFC II-2nd tranche	 20.3	  187,500,000 	  262,500,000
 
			    300,000,000 	  590,375,000 
	 Less:  Unamortized portion of initial transaction cost		   4,367,408 	  8,100,427
 
			    295,632,592 	  582,274,573 
	 Less:  Current maturity	 26	  150,000,000 	  290,375,000
 
			    145,632,592 	  291,899,573 
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	 20.1	 These  represent  secured, rated  and listed Term Finance Certificates (TFCs), being instrument of  

redeemable capital under the Companies Ordinance, 1984. The TFCs have a tenure of five (5) years 
and consist of Rs. 250 million out of which Rs. 200 million were offered to institutional investors for 
pre-IPO placements and Rs. 50 million to the general public. The TFCs are secured by way of first 
charge on the specific leased assets and associated lease rentals receivable with a margin of 25% 
and are issued in set of ten (10) TFCs, each set having an aggregate face value of Rs. 5,000.			

		  The principal is repayable in ten un-equal semi-annual installments in arrears starting from  03 
December 2003. Each TFC redeemed on its due date through the dispatch of a crossed cheque to 
the registered holders of the TFC.			 

		
		  The profit  is payable semi annually at State Bank of Pakistan discount rate + 2.0% with a floor of 

9.00% and a cap of 14.00%. The profit rate is set three working days prior to the beginning of each 
semi-annual period for the profit due at the end of that semi-annual period.			 

					   
		  The initial transaction cost is amortized on straight line basis in conjunction with the term of TFCs.			

	 20.2	 This  represents first tranche of second issue of  secured, rated and listed Term Finance Certificates 
(TFC’s) being instrument of redeemable capital issued under the Companies Ordinance, 1984. The 
TFCs have a tenure of five (5) years and consist of Rs.375 million out of which Rs.300 million were 
offered to institutional investors for Pre-IPO placements and Rs. 75 million to the general public. The 
TFCs are secured by way of first charge on the specific leased assets and associated lease rentals 
receivable with a margin of 25% and are issued in set of ten (10) TFCs, each set having an aggregate 
face value of Rs. 5,000.			 

					   
		  The principal is repayable in ten equal semi-annual installments in arrears starting from 17 January 

2005. Each TFC will be redeemed on its due date through the dispatch of a crossed cheque to the 
registered holders of the TFC.			 

		
		  The  profit  is payable semi annually at 6 months KIBOR + 300 bps per annum with a floor of 6 % and 

a cap of 10 %. The profit rate is set seven days before the start of semi- annual period for which the 
profit is being paid.			 

					   
		  The initial transaction cost is amortized on straight line basis in conjunction with the term of TFCs.	

	 20.3	 This  represents second tranche of second issue of  secured , rated  and listed Term Finance 
Certificates (TFC’s) being instrument of redeemable capital issued under the Companies Ordinance, 
1984. The TFCs have a tenure of five (5) years and consist of Rs.375 million of which Rs.300 million 
were offered to institutional investors for Pre-IPO placements and Rs. 75 million to the general public. 
The TFCs are secured by way of first charge on the specific leased assets and associated lease 
rentals receivable with a margin of 25% and are issued in set of ten (10) TFCs, each set having an 
aggregate face value of Rs.5,000.			 

					   
		  The principal is repayable in ten equal semi-annual installments in arrears starting from 15 May 

2006. Each TFC will be redeemed on its due date through the dispatch of a crossed cheque to the 
registered holders of the TFC.			 

					   
		  The  profit  is payable semi annually at 6 months KIBOR + 200 bps per annum with no floor and no 

cap. The profit rate is set seven days before the start of semi- annual period for which the profit is 
being paid.			 

					   
		  The initial transaction cost is amortized on straight line basis in conjunction with the term of TFCs.			
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		  2008	 2007
	 Note	  Rupees 	 Rupees

21	Long  term certificates of 
	    investment - unsecured				  
					   
	 Local currency				  
	  - Financial institutions		   858,333,333 	  1,100,000,000 
	  - Corporates		   13,642,940 	  13,352,940 
	  - Individuals		   124,180,955 	  19,570,000
 
		  21.1	  996,157,228 	  1,132,922,940 
	 Less:  Current maturity	 26	  895,403,258 	  490,000
 
			    100,753,970 	  1,132,432,940 
					   
	 21.1	 These represent deposits received by the Company as per permission granted by the  Securities and 

Exchange Commission of Pakistan. These certificates are issued for a period of one year to six years 
at the rates ranging from 10% to 14% (2007: 11 % to 16.67 % ) per annum.			 

		  2008	 2007
	 Note	 Rupees	 Rupees
22	Long  term borrowings - secured				   					   
	 Banking companies and other financial institutions:				  
					   
	 The Bank of Punjab Limited	 22.1	  79,166,666 	  137,500,002 
	 Faysal Bank Limited		  22.2	  83,333,333 	  - 
	 Askari Bank Limited		  22.3	  - 	  16,666,664 
	 Allied Bank Limited		  22.4	  50,000,000 	  86,666,665 
	 National Bank of Pakistan Limited	 22.5	  - 	  33,160,441 
	 Habib Bank Limited 		  22.6	  66,666,668 	  141,666,666 
	 Pak Kuwait Investment Company (Pvt.) Ltd.	 22.7	  - 	  16,666,664 
	 Pak Oman Investment Company (Pvt.) Ltd.	 22.8	  - 	  25,000,000 
	 Syndicated Term Finance 	 22.9	  20,940,432 	  55,432,466 
	 Soneri Bank Ltd.		  22.10	  - 	  50,000,000 
	 Saudipak Industrial & Agricultural Investment 				  
	 Company (Pvt.) Limited.		 22.11	  33,333,328 	  66,666,664 
	 Standard Chartered Bank Limited	 22.12	  454,888,888 	  - 
	 Atlas Bank Limited		  22.13	  200,000,000 	  - 

				     988,329,315 	  629,426,232 
	 Less:  Current portion shown under current liabilities	 26	  386,848,127 	  379,452,572 

				     601,481,188 	  249,973,660 
					   
	 22.1	 These represent two facilities of an aggregate amount of Rs. 200 million. These facilities are secured  

against first charge on specific leased assets and related receivables. These carry mark-up at the 
rate of 3 months KIBOR + 250 bps per annum with a floor of 4.5%. These facilities are repayable in 
twelve and sixteen equal quarterly instalments starting from  05 December 2005 and 31 March 2006 
respectively.			 
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	 22.2	 This represents a facility of  Rs. 100 million. The facility is secured by way of first charge on specific 
leased assets with 25% margin and carry mark-up at the rate of 6 months KIBOR + 190 bps per 
annum. This facility is repayable in twelve equal quarterly installments starting from 29 October 
2007.			 

					   
	 22.3	 This represents a facility of Rs. 50 million. The facility  is  secured  against first charge on specific 

leased assets and related receivables. It carries mark-up at the rate of 6 months KIBOR + 250 bps 
per annum. The facility is repayable in twelve equal quarterly installments starting from 30 August 
2005. This facility has expired on 30 May 2008. 

			 
	 22.4	 These represent two facilities of an aggregate amount of Rs. 200 million. These facilities are secured  

against first charge on specific leased assets and related receivables. These carry mark-up at the 
rate ranging from 6 months KIBOR + 200 bps to 6 months KIBOR + 250 bps per annum with a floor 
of 7%. These facilities are repayable in six and ten equal half yearly installments starting from 28 
June 2005 and 30 June 2006 respectively.			 

					   
	 22.5	 These represent two facilities of an aggregate amount of Rs. 150 million. These facilities are secured 

against first charge on specific leased assets and related receivables and carry mark-up at the rate 
ranging from 6 months KIBOR + 200 bps to 6 months KIBOR + 250 bps per annum with a floor of 
5%. These are repayable in twelve equal quarterly installments starting from 31 March 2005 and 30 
September 2005 respectively. Both facilities have expired on 05 November 2007 and 27 April 2008, 
respectively.			 

					   
	 22.6	 These represent three facilities of an aggregate amount of Rs. 250 million. These facilities are secured 

against first charge on specific leased assets and related receivables and carry mark-up at the rate 
of 6 months KIBOR+200 bps per annum and 6 months KIBOR+250 bps per annum with a floor of 
5%. These are repayable in twelve equal quarterly installments starting from 04 February 2005,  17 
September 2005 and 30 September 2007 respectively.			 

					   
	 22.7	 This represents a facility of Rs. 50 million. The facility  is  secured  against first charge on specific 

leased assets and related receivables. It carries mark-up at the rate of 6 months KIBOR + 245 
bps per annum. The facility is repayable  in twelve equal quarterly installments starting from 27 
September 2005. This facility has expired on 27 June 2008.			 

					   
	 22.8	 This represents a facility of Rs. 75 million. The facility  is  secured  against first charge on specific 

leased assets and related receivables. It carries mark-up at the rate of 6 months KIBOR + 250 
bps per annum. The facility is repayable  in twelve equal quarterly installments starting from 08 
September 2005. This facility has expired on 08 June 2008.			 

					   
	 22.9	 This represents a syndicated term finance facility of Rs. 100 million from Saudi Pak Industrial and 

Agricultural Investment Company (Private) Limited, Pak Oman Investment Company Limited and Pak 
Libya Holding Company (Private) Limited. The facility  is  secured  against first charge on specific 
leased assets and related receivables. It carries mark-up at the rate of 6 months KIBOR + 225 bps 
per annum. The facility is repayable  in eight equal half yearly installments starting from 15 June 
2005.			 

					   
	 22.10	 This represents a facility of Rs. 50 million. The facility  is  secured  against first charge on specific 

leased assets and related receivables. It carries mark-up rate of 6 months KIBOR + 300 bps per 
annum. The facility is repayable on completion of three years period starting from 15 December 
2004. This facility has expired on 15 December 2007 by way of bullet payment.			
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	 22.11	 These represent two facilities of an aggregate amount of Rs. 100 million. These facilities  are  secured  
against first charge on specific leased assets and related receivables. Thses carry mark-up at the 
rate of 6 months KIBOR + 250 bps to 3 months KIBOR + 275 bps per annum. These facilities are 
repayable  in twelve equal quarterly installments starting from 18 October 2005 and 13 April 2007, 
respectively.			 

					   
	 22.12	 This represents a facility of Rs. 500 million. The facility is secured against book debt security and 

collection account. These carry mark up at the rate of 3 month KIBOR + 160 bps.The facility is 
repayable in twelve equal quarterly installments starting from 28 Febraury 2008.			

	 22.13	 This represents a facility of Rs. 200 million. The facility is secured against first charge on specific/ 
exclusive leased assets and related receivables. It carries mark up at the rate of 3 month KIBOR + 
1.85 %.The facility is repayable in sixteen equal quarterly installments starting from 11 April 2008.			

		  2008	 2007
	 Note	  Rupees 	 Rupees
					   
23	Long  term deposits				  
					   
	 Margin against letter of guarantee		   23,362,860 	  6,220,000 

	 Deposits against lease arrangements 	 23.1	  1,218,771,389 	  1,050,934,851 
	 Less: Current maturity	 26	  215,914,768 	  123,723,476
 
			    1,002,856,621 	  927,211,375 

			    1,026,219,481 	  933,431,375 
					   
	 23.1	 These represent the interest  free security deposits (lease key money)  received on lease contracts 

and are adjustable at the expiry of their respective lease periods.			 

		  2008	 2007
	 Note	 Rupees	 Rupees
24	 Pre- IPO subscription of Term 
	    Finance Certificates

	 AMZ Plus Income Fund		   60,000,000 	  - 
	 Askari Income Fund		   50,000,000 	  - 
	 Dawood Money Market Fund		   50,000,000 	  - 
	 KASB Liquid Fund		   50,000,000 	  - 
	 Pakistan Income Fund		   50,000,000 	  - 
	 United Money Market Fund		   50,000,000 	  - 
	 United Growth & Income Fund		   50,000,000 	  - 
	 Alfalah GHP Income Multiplier Fund		   40,000,000 	  - 
	 First Dawood Mutual Fund		   25,000,000 	  - 

	 Dawood Capital Management Limited		   25,000,000 	  - 
			    450,000,000 	  - 
	 Less:  Current maturity	 26	  (90,000)	  - 

			    449,910,000 	  - 
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	 24.1	 These  represent  secured, rated  and listed Term Finance Certificates (TFCs-III), being instrument 
of  redeemable capital under the Companies Ordinance, 1984. These TFCs have a tenure of five 
(5) years and consist of Rs. 600 million out of which Rs. 450 million were offered to institutional 
investors for pre-IPO placements and Rs. 150 million to the general public on 04 July 2008. These 
TFCs are secured by way of first charge on the specific leased assets and associated lease rentals 
receivable with a margin of 40% and each TFC set has an aggregate face value of Rs. 5,000.			

	 24.2	 The profit  is payable semi annually at six months KIBOR + 1.85%. The instrument is structured 
to redeem 0.02% of principal in two equal semi-annual installments along with mark-up payments 
and remaining principal in eight equal semi-annual installments at six months KIBOR + 1.85%. The 
redemption shall start from 18th month from the last subscription day i.e. 04 July 2008.			

		  2008	 2007
	 Note	  Rupees 	 Rupees

25	 Staff service costs			 
				  
	 Gratuity	 25.1	  2,343,011 	  1,992,724 
	 Leave encashment	 25.1	  4,248,992 	  2,026,869
 
			    6,592,003 	  4,019,593

				                      Gratuity 		                       Leave encashment	

				    2008	 2007	 2008	 2007

			   Note	  Rupees 	 Rupees	  Rupees 	 Rupees
25.1	 Movement in liability recognized in 					   
	    the balance sheet					   
						    
	 Net liability as at 01 July 2007		   1,992,724 	  5,580,463 	  2,026,869 	  - 
	 Amount recognized during the year	 25.1.1	  5,020,239 	  5,702,494 	  3,827,709 	  2,393,912 
	 Contribution made by the Company		   (4,669,952)	  (9,290,233)	  (1,605,586)	  (367,043)

	 Net liability as at 30 June 2008	 25.1.2	  2,343,011 	  1,992,724 	  4,248,992 	  2,026,869 
						    
25.1.1	Amounts charged to profits and loss					   
	    account during the current year					   
						    
	 Current service cost		   5,974,242 	  3,416,367 	  1,777,690 	  1,326,694 
	 Interest cost		   790,733 	  1,612,101 	  321,501 	  178,221 
	 Expected return on plan assets		   (223,980)	  (180,846)	  - 	  - 
	 Liability charge due to application of IAS-19	  286,421 	  286,422 	  - 	  - 
	 Actuarial loss - charge for the year		   185,547 	  568,450 	  1,134,447 	  294,926 
	 Additional charge due to adoption of IAS 19	  - 	  - 	  594,071 	  594,071 

	 Total			    7,012,963 	  5,702,494 	  3,827,709 	  2,393,912 
				                      



66

				    Gratuity 		                       Leave encashment	

				    2008	 2007	 2008	 2007

				     Rupees 	 Rupees	  Rupees 	 Rupees
						    
25.1.2	Reconciliation of liability recognized in the					   
	 balance sheet in respect of gratuity					   
						    
	 Present value of defined benefit obligations 	  10,194,637 	  7,907,331 	  4,843,062 	  3,215,010 
	 Less:  Fair value of plan assets		   (5,647,850)	  (2,239,798)	  - 	  - 
	 Less:  Actuarial losses to be 					   
	 recognized in later periods		   (3,614,409)	  (3,388,389)	  - 	  - 
	 Add:  Benefits due but not paid		   80,583 	  - 	  - 	  - 
	 Less:  Unrecognized transitional liability to 					   
	 be recognized in later periods		   - 	  (286,421)	  (594,070)	  (1,188,141)

	 Balance sheet liability		   1,012,961 	  1,992,723 	  4,248,992 	  2,026,869 
						    
25.1.3	Actual return on the plan assets					  

	 Expected return on the plan assets		   223,980 	  180,846 	  - 	  - 
	 Actuarial (loss) / gain on plan assets		   (138,700)	  49,555 	  - 	  - 

	 Actual return on the plan assets		   85,280 	  230,401 	  - 	  - 
						    

25.1.4	Qualified actuary carried out the valuation as on 30 June 2008 using the Projected Unit Credit Method. 
Following significant assumptions were used:

				                      Gratuity 		                       Leave encashment	

				    2008	 2007	 2008	 2007

	 Discount rate		  12% per annum	 10% per annum	 12% per annum	 10% per annum
	 Expected rate of increase in salary		  11% per annum	 9% per annum	 11% per annum	 9% per annum
	 Expected rate of return on plan assets		  12% per annum	 10% per annum	 -	 -
	 Average number of leaves utilised per annum	 -	 -	 8 Days	 5 Days
	 Expected average remaining years until 
	    vesting  as on 30 June		  14 years	 13 years	 -	 -
						    
25.2	 The present value of defined benefit obligation, the fair value of plan assets and the surplus or deficit on 

gratuity fund is as follows:					   
			   2008	 2007	 2006	 2005	 2004
			   Rupees	 Rupees	 Rupees	 Rupees	 Rupees
	 As at 30 June					   
	 Present value of defined obligation	 7,907,331 	  7,907,331 	  17,912,230 	 6,506,811 	  4,433,633 
	 Fair value of plan assets	 5,647,850 	 5,647,850 	 2,239,798 	 1,923,197 	  1,785,575
 
	 Deficit		  (2,259,481)	 (2,259,481)	 (15,672,432)	 (4,583,614)	  (2,648,058)

						    
	 Fair value of plan assets include certificates of investments, whose fair value as at 30 June 2008 is Rs.5.647 

million (2007 : Rs.2.239 million).
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		  2008	 2007
	 Note	  Rupees 	 Rupees
26	 Current maturities of long term liabilities 				  
					   
	 Term finance certificates - secured	 20	  150,000,000 	  290,375,000 
	 Certificates of investment - unsecured	 21	  895,403,258 	  490,000 
	 Long term borrowings - secured	 22	  386,848,127 	  379,452,572 
	 Long term deposits	 23	  215,914,768 	  123,723,476 
	 Pre- IPO subscription of Term Finance Certificates	 24	  90,000 	  -
 
			    1,648,256,153 	  794,041,048 
					   
27	 Short term certificates of 
	    investment  - unsecured				  
					   
	 Local currency				  
	  - Financial institutions		   750,000,000 	  135,000,000 
	  - Corporate 		   240,962,953 	  146,599,895 
	  - Individuals		   51,219,038 	  50,274,330
 
			    1,042,181,991 	  331,874,225 
					   
	 27.1	 These represent unsecured short term certificates of investment for a period of three months to one year. 

These carry mark-up at the rate ranging from 8.25% to 18% (2007: 9.00% to 12.25%) per annum.			

		  2008	 2007
	 Note	 Rupees	 Rupees
28	 Short term borrowings 				  
					   
	 Banking companies and other financial institutions:				  
					   
	 Running finances - secured	 28.1	  332,216,672 	  211,153,324 
	 Placements from financial institutions - unsecured	 28.2	  1,579,185,500 	  1,162,500,000 

			    1,911,402,172 	  1,373,653,324
 
 
	 28.1	 These represent running finance facilities utilized from commercial banks.The total limits against 

running finance facilities amounts to Rs. 455.00 million (2007: Rs. 328.00  million).These carry mark-
up at the rate of 3 months KIBOR + 100 bps to 3 months KIBOR + 250 bps with a floor ranging 
from 4.5% to 10.0% ( 2007: 3 months KIBOR + 200 bps to 3 month KIBOR + 213 bps  ) per annum 
payable on quarterly basis.			 

					   
		  The above facilities have been obtained for a period of one year and are secured against promissory 

notes, first charge on specific leased assets, related receivable and pledge of shares.			

		  2008	 2007
		   Rupees 	 Rupees
		  Carrying amount of quoted shares given as 			 
		     collateral against borrowings		   333,800,683 	  167,605,000 
					   
	 28.2	 These represent unsecured short term placements of one day to four months obtained from financial 

institutions carrying mark-up at the rate ranging from 6.25 % to 26 % (2007: 7 % to 13%).
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		  2008	 2007
	 Note	  Rupees 	 Rupees
					   
29	 Mark-up accrued				  
					   
	 Secured 				  
					   
	  - Short and long term borrowings		   49,020,711 	  25,814,820 
	  - Term finance certificates 		   15,475,668 	  13,879,017
 
			    64,496,379 	  39,693,837 
	 Unsecured				  
					   
	  -  Certificates of investment		   28,735,462 	  14,487,697 

			    93,231,841 	  54,181,534 
					   
30	 Trade and other payables 				  
					   
	 Payable to National Clearing Company of Pakistan Limited		   377,328 	  - 
	 Customer’s credit balances 		   47,689,653 	  199,320,252 
	 Advance receipt against leases	 30.1	  20,206,853 	  17,807,071 
	 Unclaimed dividend 		   3,221,681 	  2,497,201 
	 Accrued liabilities		   2,485,230 	  3,770,675 
	 Other liabilities		   7,170,817 	  7,081,089
 
			    81,151,562 	  230,476,288 

	 30.1	 These represent initial security deposits received from lessees before the structuring of leases.			

31	 Contingencies and commitments 				  
					   
	 31.1	 Contingencies			 
					   
	 31.1.1	 The Company has issued guarantees to various parties on behalf of clients amounting to Rs.182.342 

million. (2007: Rs. 25.681 million)			 
					   
	 31.1.2	 In a suit filed, pending for ratable distribution of sale proceeds of a property auctioned by the Company 

on the order of the Banking Court, the Honorable Lahore High Court directed the Company to deposit 
the sale proceeds of that property amounting to Rs 25.650 million with the Court. However, the 
Company has obtained a stay against the order of the Honorable Lahore High Court. The Company’s 
lawyer is of the opinion that the maximum exposure to the Company will be Rs 8.53 million if the 
case is decided against the Company. 			 

					   
	 31.2	 Commitments			 
					   
	 31.2.1	 Lease commitments approved but not disbursed as on balance sheet date amount to Rs.123.142 

million (2007 : Rs. 217.065 million).			 
					   
	 31.2.2	 Commitment for the purchase of office space is given to Tricon Developers (Pvt) Limited, amounting 

to Rs. 29.63 million (2007 :Rs. 136.63 million).
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		  2008	 2007
	 Note	  Rupees 	 Rupees
32	 Income from lease operations 				  
					   
	 Finance lease income		   439,342,722 	  326,263,149 
	 Front end fee		   842,123 	  3,960,718 
	 Commitment and other fees		   8,275,411 	  906,003 
	 Miscellaneous	 32.1	  37,435,919 	  24,215,167
 
			    485,896,175 	  355,345,037 
					   
	 32.1	 Miscellaneous lease income			 
					   
		  Mark-up on lease advance		   10,805,362 	  6,233,938 
		  Additional lease rentals  		   26,630,557 	  17,981,229
 
				     37,435,919 	  24,215,167 
					   
33	 Income from investments 				  
					   
	 Profit on disposal of investment held for trading		   135,248,716 	  175,601,259 
	 Profit on investment in continuous funding system		   27,833,456 	  91,221,945 
	 Profit on disposal of shares under reverse 
	    repurchase agreements		   46,468,204 	  43,491,103 
	 Profit on disposal of shares purchased under future contract 		  1,094,383	 -
	 Profit on short term placements and long term investments	 	  41,927,450 	  3,279,354 
	 Dividend income		   10,251,250 	  5,959,848 
	 Underwriting and trusteeship fee		   1,613,625 	  1,718,223 
	 Gain on disposal of available for sale investments 		   9,472,666 	  3,685,066 

			    273,909,750 	  324,956,798 
					   
34	 Income from term finances				  
					   
	 34.1	 Mark- up earned on long term finances 			 
		  Empolyees		   1,053,271 	  571,640 
		  Customers		   16,569,055 	  2,910,513
 
				     17,622,326 	  3,482,153 
	 34.2	 Mark- up earned on short term finances 			 
		  Empolyees		   95,980 	  91,035 
		  Customers		   26,392,670 	  5,405,239
 
				     26,488,650 	  5,496,274
 
				     44,110,976 	  8,978,427
 
					   



70

		  2008	 2007
	 Note	  Rupees 	 Rupees
35	 Other income				  
					   
	 Gain on disposal of operating fixed assets 	 4.1.1	  22,448,499 	  199,163 
	 Commission income		   2,462,351 	  2,873,189 
	 Profits on bank deposits		   141 	  82,465 
	 Miscellaneous 	 35.1	  65,927,650 	  11,783,800 
				  
			    90,838,641 	  14,938,617 
					   
	 35.1	 This includes an amount of Rs. 56.750 million being a gain on sale of right to acquire office space at 

Kalma Tower, Ferozepur Road Lahore.			 
		  2008	 2007
	 Note	  Rupees 	 Rupees	
36	Finance  cost				  
					   
	 Mark-up on long term borrowings 		   87,925,764 	  81,736,770 
	 Mark-up on term finance certificates		   104,343,216 	  82,299,445 
	 Mark-up on short term borrowings		   118,927,462 	  134,359,778 
	 Mark-up on certificates of investment		   210,140,148 	  111,810,913 
	 Mark-up on running finance 			    8,556,271 	  10,336,945 
	 Commitment and other processing fee		   2,686,995 	  2,154,197 
	 Bank charges and commission  			    5,893,085 	  3,474,051 
	 Markup payable on pre-IPO deposits of preference shares 		   - 	  2,589,524 

				     538,472,941 	  428,761,623 
					   
37	 Administrative and operating expenses 				  

	 Salaries and other benefits			    103,312,972 	  98,941,822 
	 Printing and stationery			    3,890,737 	  3,404,608 
	 Vehicle running and maintenance		   8,674,886 	  6,485,370 
	 Postage, telephone and telex			    7,349,169 	  4,696,501 
	 Traveling and conveyance			    3,448,512 	  1,425,486 
	 Boarding and lodging			    686,729 	  408,861 
	 Entertainment			    2,102,391 	  2,353,033 
	 Advertisement			    697,081 	  1,777,184 
	 Electricity, gas and water			    3,734,036 	  3,681,332 
	 Newspapers and periodicals			    159,795 	  149,576 
	 Auditors’ remuneration 		  37.1	  558,850 	  405,000 
	 Fee and subscription			    1,436,301 	  1,350,893 
	 Corporate expenses			    1,355,296 	  2,210,473 
	 Staff service costs			    8,817,108 	  8,096,406 
	 Software 			    117,410 	  48,500 
	 Rent, rates and taxes			    24,734,932 	  14,567,402 
	 Insurance			    3,785,547 	  1,429,298 
	 Donations 		  37.2	  - 	  19,850 
	 Office maintenance			    3,239,529 	  3,659,607 
	 Legal and professional charges			    4,307,851 	  1,944,047 
	 Security charges			    2,244,770 	  1,398,154 
	 Staff training			    136,827 	  58,320 
	 Business promotion 			    - 	  177,995 
	 Commission on recovery-outsource		   3,410,988 	  1,587,179 
	 CDC and clearing charges			    3,278,866 	  2,433,109 
	 Miscellaneous			    2,175,433 	  2,704,697 

				     193,656,016 	  165,414,703 
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		  2008	 2007
	 Note	  Rupees 	 Rupees

	 37.1	 Auditors’ remuneration			 
					   
		  Audit fee			 
		  Annual		   350,000 	  200,000 
		  Half yearly review		   80,000 	  60,000 
		  Certifications and other services		   70,000 	  95,000 
		  Out of pocket expenses		   58,850 	  50,000 

				     558,850 	  405,000 
					   
	 37.2	 Donations include payment of Rs. Nil (2007: Rs. 3,000) to Presidents Earthquake Relief Fund 

and Rs. Nil (2007: Rs. 14,850) to TDCP school. None of the directors have any interests in these 
institutions.			 

		  2008	 2007
	 Note	 Rupees	 Rupees			 
38	 Other charges 				  
					   
	 Lease receivable written off		   1,020,487 	  23,877 
	 Loss on disposal of operating fixed assets		   - 	  1,668 
	 Penalties imposed by Lahore Stock Exchange		   10,000 	  - 

			    1,030,487 	  25,545 
39	 Provision for taxation 				  
					   
	 For the year				  
	  - Current 	 39.1	  2,904,711 	  2,500,000 
	  - Deferred	 39.2	  (86,563,292)	  10,000,000 

			    (83,658,581)	  12,500,000 
					   
	 39.1	 In view of tax losses, current year tax is based on minimum turnover tax under section 113 of the 

Income Tax Ordinance, 2001, as a result of this, tax charge reconciliation has not been given.			

	 39.2	 Deffered tax asset comprises of deductable temporary differences amounting to Rs. 785.26 million 
and taxable temporary differences amounting to Rs. 723.8 million. Deffered tax asset arised 
amounting to Rs. 61.53 million during the year and reversal of tax liability amounting to Rs.25.03 
million.			 

		  2008	 2007
	
40	 Earnings per share - basic 				   		

	 Profit for the year after taxation	 Rupees	  149,782,942 	  103,047,552 

	 Weighted average number of ordinary shares	 Numbers	  58,552,873 	  58,552,873 

	 Earnings per share (restated 2007)	 Rupees	  2.56 	 1.76
					   
	 40.1	 No figure for diluted earnings per share has been presented as the Company has not issued any 

instrument which would have an impact on its earning per share.
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41	 Remuneration of chief executive, executives and directors 
		                            CHIEF EXECUTIVE	               Directors		                 Executives		

				  
		  2008	 2007	 2008	 2007	 2008	 2007
		  Rupees	 Rupees	 Rupees	 Rupees	 Rupees	 Rupees
								      
	 Managerial remuneration	 3,483,000 	  2,921,678 	  - 	  1,217,978 	  16,338,112 	  12,840,838 
	 Housing and utilities	  1,917,000 	  1,606,918 	  - 	  659,353 	  8,992,294 	  7,062,521 
	 Bonus	  290,323 	  182,000 	  - 	  - 	  1,498,842 	  205,500 
	 Medical	  98,948 	  94,714 	  - 	  12,283 	  722,146 	  492,383 
	 Others	  937,951 	  5,149,948 	  - 	  15,111,570 	  5,542,856 	  7,299,134 
	 Gratuity	  571,753 	  280,708 	  - 	  8,712,000 	  2,751,122 	  2,644,981 
	 Directorship Fee	  105,000 	  - 	  405,000 	  - 	  - 	  - 
								      
		   7,403,975 	  10,235,966 	  405,000 	  25,713,184 	  35,845,372 	  30,545,357 
								      
	 Number of persons	 1	 2	 6	 3	  19 	  15 
								      
	 41.1	 Others include Rs. 15 million paid to two former directors / CEO as severance packages as per their 

terms of contract in last year.

	 41.2	 In addition to the above remuneration chief executive and some executives were also provided with 
free use of Company maintained vehicles.

	 41.3	 Fee was paid to CEO and directors for attending the board meetings amounting to Rs. 510,000 
(2007: Nil).
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	 42.1	 Credit risk
		
		  Credit risk arises from the possibility of asset impairment occurring because counter parties cannot 

meet their obligations in transactions involving financial instruments. The Company has established 
procedures to manage credit exposure including credit approvals, credit limits, collateral and 
guarantee requirements. These procedures incorporate both internal guidelines and requirements of 
the Prudential Regulations for NBFC. The Company also manages risk through an independent credit 
department which evaluate customers credit worthiness and growth potential.

		
		  Concentration of credit risk arises when a number of counter parties are engaged in similar business 

activities or activities in the same geographic region or have similar economic features which would 
cause their ability to meet contractual obligations to be similarly affected by changes in economic, 
political or other conditions. Concentration of credit risk indicates the relative sensitivity of the 
Company’s performance to developments affecting a particular industry or geographic location.

		
		  The Company manages concentration of credit risk exposure through diversification of activities to 

avoid undue concentration of risks with individuals, groups or specific industry segments. For such 
purpose, the Company has established exposure limits for single leases and industrial sectors. The 
Company has an effective rental monitoring system, which allows it to evaluate customers credit 
worthiness and identify classified portfolio. An allowance for potential lease, installment and other 
loan losses is maintained at a level which, in the judgment of management, is adequate to provide for 
potential losses on lease, installment and other loan portfolio that can be reasonably anticipated.

		
		  An analysis by class of business of the Company’s net investment in finance leases is given below:
		
		  The Company has no significant concentration of credit risk, with exposure spread over a large 

number of lessees.

			   June		  June	
			   2008		  2007	

			   Rupees	 %	 Rupees	 %
		  Industrial sectors				  
					   
		  Chemical & fertilizer	 59,916,859 	 1.06%	 12,270,840 	 0.29%
		  Construction	 516,341,304 	 9.15%	 9,228,265 	 0.22%
		  Education	 0 	 0.00%	 73,511 	 0.00%
		  Financial institutions	 5,402,191 	 0.10%	 6,236,917 	 0.15%
		  Health care	 116,664,152 	 2.07%	 74,387,882 	 1.76%
		  Hotels	 97,319,007 	 1.72%	 0 	 0.00%
		  Individuals / auto lease	 2,021,835,544 	 35.82%	 1,984,212,526 	 46.89%
		  Insurance companies	 7,852,438 	 0.14%	 10,329,470 	 0.24%
		  Miscellaneous manufacturing	 289,601,061 	 5.13%	 114,281,416 	 2.70%
		  Miscellaneous services	 267,162,545 	 4.73%	 42,349,974 	 1.00%
		  Natural gas & LPG	 152,724,690 	 2.71%	 108,638,765 	 2.57%
		  Paper & board	 20,178,260 	 0.36%	 12,680,078 	 0.30%
		  Steel & engineering	 135,813,506 	 2.41%	 12,044,595 	 0.28%
		  Sugar & allied	 63,045,144 	 1.12%	 80,316,319 	 1.90%
		  Textile composite	 186,359,148 	 3.30%	 73,066,779 	 1.73%
		  Textile knitwear / apparel	 187,454,316 	 3.32%	 70,423,793 	 1.66%
		  Textile spinning	 150,870,856 	 2.67%	 42,005,556 	 0.99%
		  Transport & communication	 1,365,232,133 	 24.19%	 1,578,777,565 	 37.31%
					   
			    5,643,773,154 	 100%	  4,231,324,251 	 100%
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	 42.2	L iquidity Risks	
			 
		  Liquidity risk is the risk that the Company will encounter difficulties in raising funds to meet 

commitments associated with financial instruments. The Company has diversified its funding 
sources and assets are managed with liquidity in mind, maintaining a healthy balance of cash and 
cash equivalents and readily marketable securities. The maturity profile is monitored on regular basis 
at Assets and Liabilities Committee to ensure that adequate liquidity is maintained. 	

			 
		  The table below summarizes the maturity profile of the assets and liabilities.

			   	  More than  	  Over  	
			    Within 	  one year and  	  five 	
			    one year 	  up to five years 	   years 	  Total 

			    Rupees 	  Rupees 	  Rupees 	  Rupees 
	 Maturities of assets and liabilities				  
					   
	 Assets	 			 
	 Property and equipment	  10,647,792 	  - 	  113,431,027 	  124,078,819 
	 Intangible assets	  32,388,317 	  - 	  816,367 	  33,204,684 
	 Net investment in lease finance	  1,204,539,838 	  3,420,843,454 	  - 	  4,625,383,292 
	 Long term finances	  6,107,076 	  563,347,630 	  - 	  569,454,706 
	 Long term investments	  - 	  279,992,000 	  - 	  279,992,000 
	 Long term advances	  - 	  97,379,318 	  - 	  97,379,318 
	 Long term deposits 	  - 	  - 	  4,159,629 	  4,159,629 
	 Short term finances	  384,634,120 	  - 	  - 	  384,634,120 
	 Short term placements 	  500,425,308 	  - 	  - 	  500,425,308 
	 Short term investments 	  98,271,493 	  471,619,653 	  - 	  569,891,145 
	 Taxation -net	  33,097,670 	  - 	  - 	  33,097,670 
	 Deffered tax assets	  - 	  55,366,202 		   55,366,202 
	 Markup accrued	  37,070,524 	  - 	  - 	  37,070,524 
	 Advances, prepayments and 				     - 
	 other receivables	  533,313,943 	  148,625,216 	  - 	  681,939,159 
	 Cash and bank balances	  93,288,773 	  - 	  - 	  93,288,773 

		   	 2,933,784,854 	  5,037,173,472 	  118,407,023 	  8,089,365,348 
					   
	L iabilities				  
	 Term finance certificates	  150,000,000 	  145,632,592 	  - 	  295,632,592 
	 Long term certificates of investment	  895,403,258 	  100,753,970 	  - 	  996,157,228 
	 Long term borrowings	  386,848,127 	  601,481,188 	  - 	  988,329,315 
	 Long term deposits	  215,914,768 	  1,026,219,481 	  - 	  1,242,134,249 
	 Pre- IPO subscription of Term Finance Certificates	  90,000 	 393,682,500	  56,227,500 	 450,000,000
	 Deferred taxation	  - 	  - 	  - 	  - 
	 Staff service costs	  - 	  6,592,003 	  - 	  6,592,003 
	 Short term certificates of investment	  1,042,181,991 	  - 	  - 	  1,042,181,991 
	 Short term borrowings	  1,911,402,172 	  - 	  - 	  1,911,402,172 
	 Markup accrued	  93,231,841 	  - 	  - 	  93,231,841 
	 Trade and other payables	  81,151,562 	  - 	  - 	  81,151,562 
		   	 4,776,223,719 	 2,274,361,734	  56,227,500 	 7,106,812,953

	 Net assets	  (1,842,438,865)	 2,762,811,738	  62,179,523 	 982,552,395		
			 

	 Equity 				  
	 Share capital				     585,528,729 
	 Reserves				     510,079,888 

						       1,095,608,617 
	 Deficit on revaluation of investments				     (120,299,798)
	 Suplus on revaluation of assets-net				     7,243,576 

				    		   982,552,395 
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	 42.3	F air value of financial instruments
		
		  Fair value is an amount for which an asset could be exchanged, or a liability settled, between 

knowledgeable willing parties in an arm’s length transaction. Consequently, differences may arise 
between the carrying amount and the fair value estimates.

		
		  The carrying value of financial assets and financial liabilities approximate their fair value as reflected 

in the financial statements.
		
	 42.4	 Interest rate risk exposure
		
		  Changes in interest/mark-up rates or in the relationships between short and long term interest/mark-

up rates can affect the rates charged on interest/mark-up earning assets differently than the rates 
paid on interest bearing liabilities. This can result in an increase in interest/mark-up expense relative 
to finance income or vice versa. The Company manages borrowings through floating rates. 

		
	 42.5	 Capital Risk Management
		
		  The Board’s policy is to maintain a strong capital base so as to maintain investors, creditors and 

market confidence and to sustain future development of the business. The Board of Directors 
monitors the return on capital, which the Company defines as net operation income divided by total 
capital employed. The board of directors also monitors the level of dividends to individuals ordinary 
shareholders.

		
		  The Company is exposed to externally imposed capital requirements.
		
		  Vide its notification dated 21 November 2007, the Securities and Exchange Commission of Pakistan 

has announced certain revisions in the NBFC Rules 2003 and has also promulgated the NBFC 
Regulations 2007. The existing NBFCs have been allowed different time limits for aligning themselves 
with different Capital requirements.

		  The Company sets the amount of capital in proportion to risk. The Company manages the capital 
structure and makes adjustments to it in the light of changes in economic conditions and the risk 
characteristics of the underlying assets. In order to maintain or adjust the capital structure, the 
Company may, for example, adjust the amount of dividend paid to shareholders, issue new shares 
or sell assets to reduce debt.

		  2008	 2007
		   Rupees 	 Rupees
43	 Cash and cash equivalents 				  
					   
	 Cash in hand		   1,175,600 	  395,429 
	 Cash at banks		   92,113,173 	  200,551,662 
	 Short term running finance 		   (332,216,672)	  (211,153,324)

			    (238,927,899)	  (10,206,233)
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44	 Transactions with related parties 				  
					   
	 Related parties comprise of directors, entities over which directors are able to exercise significant influence, 

entities with common directors, major shareholders, key management employees and employees’ fund. The 
transactions and balances with related parties, other than those which have been disclosed in the relevant 
notes are disclosed as follows: 

		  2008	 2007
		   Rupees 	 Rupees
	 First Pakistan Securities Limited				  
	     Amount due against leases		   432,769 	  613,135 
	     Finance income charged during the period		   53,598 	  77,036 
	     Deposits against lease arrangements		   149,700 	  149,700 
					   
	 MCD Pakistan Limited				  
	     Amount due against leases		   - 	  232,360 
	     Finance income charged during the period		   782 	  26,066 
	     Deposit against lease arrangements		   - 	  169,000 
				  
	 Switch Securities (Private) Limited				  
	     Amount due against leases		   - 	  273,725 
	     Finance income charged during the period		   1,534 	  40,582 
	     Deposit against lease arrangements		   - 	  142,200 
					   
	 The Bank of Punjab Limited				  
	     Total facility availed		   400,000,000 	  348,000,000 
	     Mark up accrued during the period		   17,537,019 	  21,936,484 
	     Deposit of COI		   333,333,333 	  1,000,000,000 
	     Mark up accrued during the period		   59,342,467 	  19,002,740 
	     Short term placements		   - 	  2,782,000,000 
	     Mark up accrued during the period		   - 	  18,618,021 
					   
	 Tricon Developers ( Partnership Concern)				  
	     Installments paid for purchase of office space 		   97,379,318 	  38,025,000 
	     Amount due against leases		   1,978,989 	  - 
	     Finance income charged during the period		   21,077 	  - 
	     Deposit against lease arrangements		   200,650 	  - 
					   
	 Newage Cables (Pvt) Limited				  
	     Goods purchased		   - 	  190,500 
	     Commission on brokerage transactions		   - 	  463,343 
	     
	 Union Communication (Pvt) Limited			 
	     Commission income		   - 	  109,432 
	     Communication services		   838,441 	  345,407 
	     Purchase of supplies		   - 	  68,533 
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		  2008	 2007
		   Rupees 	 Rupees

	 PolyGon Builders				  
	     Amount due against term finances		   25,550,000 	  - 
	     Finance income charged during the period		   90,650 	  - 
	     
	 Ahmed Khalil			 
	     Amount due against term finances		   15,000,000 	  - 
	     Finance income charged during the period		   1,010,411 	  - 
				  
	 Habib Rafiq (Pvt) Limited				  
	      Amount due against leases		   37,150,130 	  - 
	     Finance income charged during the period		   808,098 	  - 
	     Deposit against lease arrangements		   3,871,121 	  - 
	     Letter of guarantees		   121,137,200 	  - 
					   
	 Allied Developers				  
	     Amount due against term finances		   29,500,000 	  - 
	    Finance income charged during the period		   1,353,205 	  - 
					   
	 Employees’ retirement fund				  
	     Payment made		   6,275,538 	  9,290,233 
					   
45	 Accounting estimates and judgments				  
					   
	 Income taxes				  
					   
	 The Company takes into account the current income tax laws and decision taken by appellate authorities. 

Instances where the Company’s view differ from the view taken by the income tax department at the 
assessment stage and where the Company considers that its view on items of material nature is in 
accordance with law, the amounts are shown as contingent liabilities. Furthermore, the Company may be 
able to avail the benefits of payments of turnover tax, provided sufficient taxable profits are available in next 
five years when this credit can be utilized.  				  

					   
	 Gratuity fund				  
					   
	 Certain actuarial assumptions have been adopted as disclosed in note no. 25 to the financial statements for 

the valuation of present value of defined benefit obligations and fair value of plan assets. Any changes in 
these assumptions in future years might affect unrecognized gains and losses in those years.			
	

	 Property and equipment				  
					   
	 The depreciable lives of fixed assets are based on management’s estimate. The Company reviews the value 

of assets for possible impairments on an annual basis. Any change in the estimates in future years might 
affect the carrying amounts of the respective items of property and equipment with the corresponding affect 
on the depreciation charged and impairment.
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	 Provision against net investments in lease finance and other receivables				 

	 The Company takes into account the requirements of applicable laws along with its own judgment while 
assessing the amount of loss against investment in lease finances, income from lease operations and other 
receivables. Provision are reversed only when parties become regular after making payments and as per the 
requirements of applicable rules.				  

					   
46	 Authorization 				  
					   
	 These financial statements were authorized for issue on 27 September 2008  by the Board of Directors.			

	
					   
47	 General				  
					   
	 47.1	 Figures have been rounded off to the nearest of rupee.

chief executive 	director
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Form of Proxy
TRUST INVESTMENT BANK LIMITED

I/We___________________________________________________________________ of___________________

________________________________________________________________being member(s) of Trust Investment 

Bank Limited, holding ______________________ ordinary Shares as per Share Register Folio No./CDC Participant I.D. 

No. __________________________hereby appoint Mr./Mrs./Miss_______________________________________

of____________________________________________ who is also a member of the Bank, Folio No. / CDC Participant 

I.D. No. ________________________or failing him / her____________________________of__________________

_______________________ Folio No./CDC Participant I.D. No. _______________another member of the Bank as my / 

our Proxy in my / our absence to attend and vote for me / us and on my / our behalf at the Annual General Meeting of the 

Bank to be held on the 31st day of October, 2008 at 10:30 a.m. at Hotel Sunfort, 72-D/1, Commercial Zone, Liberty Market, 

Gulberg III, Lahore.

Signed this ______________ day of _________________ 2008.

     	 Signature of Member
	 (The Signature should agree with 
	 the specimen registered with the Bank)
Witness:	W itness:

Signature: _______________________________	 Signature: ______________________________

Name: __________________________________	 Name : ________________________________

Address: ________________________________	 Address: _______________________________	

CNIC No.: _______________________________	 CNIC No.: ______________________________

Notes:
1.	 This proxy form, duly completed and signed, must be received at the Registered Office of the Bank, 23-D/1-A, 

Gulberg III, Lahore not less than 48 hours before the time of holding the meeting.
2.	 If a member appoints more than one proxy and more than one instruments of proxies are deposited by a member 

with the Bank, all such instruments of proxy shall be rendered invalid.
3.	 No person can act as proxy unless he / she is member of the Bank, except that a corporation may appoint a person 

who is not a member. 

For CDC Account Holders / Corporate Entities.
In addition to the above, the following requirements have to be met.

i.	 The proxy form shall be witnessed by two persons whose name, address and Computerized National Identity Card 
(CNIC) number shall be mentioned on the form.

ii.	 Attested copies of CNIC or Passport of the beneficial owners and the proxy shall be provided with the proxy form.
iii.	 The proxy shall produce his original CNIC or Passport at the time of attending the meeting.
iv.	 In case of corporate entity, the Board of Directors’ Resolution / Power of Attorney with specimen signature shall be 

submitted (unless it has been provided earlier) alongwith proxy form to the Bank.

Please affix Five 
Rupees Revenue 

Stamp




